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Highlights

Infrastructure, finance, technology and innovation

Over 5 million customers
a day using the Group’s
motorways. 4I million
passengers a year served
by Rome’s airports

Atlantia9

An outstanding combination
of technology, innovation

and investment capability,

creating increasingly efficient
and sustainable transport
solutions
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5,000 km of toll motorways
in Italy, Brazil, Chile, India
and Poland

2 airports in Italy

A technological leader, world
number one in electronic tolling
systems, airport automation
solutions and traffic information
services
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60 years of setting records

1924./25

Prima autostrada

First ever toll motorway
between Milan and Varese

open (A8 Milan-Varese)

1958/64

Autostrada del Sole

Construction and
opening of the 800 km
long Autostrade del Sole
motorway (A1 Milan-
Naples)

Eurobond

First Eurobond issue
in the history of the

capital markets

Telepass

The world’s first

free-flow tolling system

Patented method
of tunnel widening

The world’s first system
of excavation without
interrupting traffic flow

(A1 Nazzano Tunnel)

S

8  Atlantia

World’s biggest
tunnelling machine

Start-up of mechanised
excavation of tunnels on the
Variante di Valico stretch of

motorway (AT Milan-Naples)
y P

using the world’s biggest

tunnelling machine (15.6m in

diameter)

France

The Group is chosen to
provide a satellite-based
tolling system for heavy
vehicles on 15,000 km of

publicly owned road network

in France

Brazil and Chile

Brazilian joint venture
with the Bertin group to
create a group operating a

network of over 1,500 km

Atlantia strengthens its
foothold in Chile
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USA

The first ever
privately-owned toll
motorway in the USA, the
Dulles Greenway, Virginia

UK

Opening of the M6 Toll,
the UK's first ever toll

motorway

Austria

The world’s first free-flow
tolling system on over
2,000 km of motorway

network

Tutor

The world’s first system
for monitoring average

speeds

Entrance into the air
transport sector

Aeroporti di Roma joins
the Atlantia Group

=
M
h
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Global presence

I Motorways + Airports I I Electronic Tolling Systems

ETC Corporation © Triangulo do Sol Costanera Norte Litoral Central Los Lagos

o

o Tieté o Vespucio Sur
o Colinas o
o

o Nascentes das Gerais

Nororiente

Vial Aeropuerto
o

vy
1o Atlantia
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Italy - T71 4

*+ H motorway concessionaires
with a network of 2,965 km

- Aeroporti di Roma

France 1 Poland it India Rome airports system
61 km 110 km Fiumicino and Ciampino

Cracovia

Ecomouv Stalexport Autostrady Pune-Solapur Rome airports system
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Consolidated financial highlights

(G) 2013 @ 2012 @®
Total revenue 4,244 4,034
Net toll revenue 3,539 3,392
Aviation revenue 34 -
Other operating income 671 642
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 2,582 2,398
EBITDA margin 60.8% 59.4%
Adjusted gross operating profit (EBITDA) © 2,662 2,463
Operating profit (EBIT) 1,816 1,632
EBIT margin 42.8% 40.5%
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 1,143 1,164
Profit margin from continuing operations 26.9% 28.9%
Profit for the year (including non-controlling interests) 722 849
Adjusted profit for the year (including non-controlling interests) © (4 721 860
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 638 830
Operating cash flow (¥ 1,663 1,508
Adjusted operating cash flow 1,658 1,523
Capital expenditure 1,247 1,630
(€M) 2013 @ 2012 @®
Equity 8,213 5,527
Net debt 10,769 10,109
Adjusted net debt © 12,579 11,651

(a) The figures for the comparative periods reflect the accounting effects of certain changes in the scope of consolidation, as described more fully in the section
“Consolidated financial review and adjusted amounts”. Due to the merger of Gemina SpA with and into Atlantia SpA, Aeroporti di Roma group is consolidated
only for December 2013.

(b) Compared with the amount published in the Annual Report for 2012, some economic and financial figures may differe due to the impact of completion of the
fair values identification of the assets and liabilities of the Chilean and Brazilian companies consolidated in 2012.

(c) Adjusted amounts have been presented with the aim of enabling analysts and the rating agencies to assess the Group’s results of operations and financial
position using the basis of presentation normally adopted by them. Information on the nature of the adjustments and on differences between the reported
and adjusted amounts is provided in the specific section “Consolidated financial review and adjusted amounts”.

(d) 2012 figure include, among other things, the gain (totalling €170.8 million) resulting from fair value measurement of the 45.765% investment in Autostrade
Sud America prior to its consolidation from 01 April 2012.

(e) Operating cash flow is calculated as profit + amortisation/depreciation +/- provisions/releases of provisions + financial expenses from discounting of
provisions +/- impairments/reversals of impairments of assets +/- share of profit/(loss) of investments accounted for using equity method +/- (losses)/gains
on sale of assets +/- other non-cash items +/- portion of net deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised in profit or loss.

Y

.
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Key market data for Atlantia

KEY MARKET DATA 2013 @ 2012 . KEY MARKET DATA 2013 @ 2012
Issued capital (at 31 December) (€) 825,783,990 661,827,592 Dividend yield ® 4.6% 5.5%
Number of shares 825,783,990 661,827,592 Year-end price (€) 16.31 13.67
Market capitalisation (€m)® 13,469 9,047 High (€) 16.51 13.95
Earnings per share (€) 0.96 1.28 Low (€) 11.92 9.14
Operating cash flow per share (€) 2.51 2.33 Share price/Earnings per share (P/E) © 17.0 10.7
Dividend per share (€) 0.746 0.746 Share price/Cash flow per share © 6.5 5.9

Interim 0.355 0.355 Market to book value © 1.6 1.6

Final 0.391 0.391 Atlantia as % of FTSE Italia All Share index © 2.54% 1.84%
Dividend/Cash flow per share (%) 30% 32% Atlantia as % of FTSE/MIB Index ® 2.92% 2.22%

GROUP’S CREDIT RATINGS

Standard & Poor's BBB+ (negative outlook) BBB+ (negative outlook)
Moody's Baal (stable outlook)© Baal (negative outlook)
Fitch Ratings A- (negative outlook) A- (stable outlook)

(a) The increase in issued capital resulting from completion of the merger of Gemina SpA with and Into Atlantia SpA was completed on 1 December 2013. This
was in implementation of the resolutions approved by the extraordinary general meetings of the shareholders of Atlantia and Gemina held on 30 April 2013,
and by the special general meeting of Gemina’s savings shareholders held on 29 April 2013. Per-share data for 2012 has thus been adjusted to take account
of the above capital increase.

(b) Figures based on the closing price at the end of the year.

(c) On 18 February 2014 Moody’s upgraded the outlook for Atlantia’s rating from negative to stable, following a similar decision, on 14 February, to upgrade the
outlook for the “BaaZ2” rating of Italy’s sovereign debt from negative to stable.

Annual Report 2013 13



| . |
e 1. Introduction

Ownership structure

Edizi Government of Singapore Goldman Sachs Mediob
eelzzlglf Investment Corporation Infrastructure Partners 85'3 4:;1/nca
I 17.68% 9.98% R
l \ l |
100%
Other principal investors ) 45.56% United Kingdom Italy
19,3% 30,6%

Fondazione CRT | 5.06%

&
vy

Blackrock | 5.02% Atlantla ——— 37.62% | Free float Rest
of the world

11,6%
3.13%
United States

of America
15,7%

Rest

of Europe
Lazard 2.06% 14,0%

France

4,3%
Geographical breakdown
of free float®

(1) Source: CONSOB figures at 31 December 2013.

(2) Excludes treasury shares held by Atlantia SpA.

(3) Source: Thomson Reuters (figures at 31 December 2013).
(4) Includes retail investors.

O
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Share performance

Share price performance - 2013

Price (€) Volumes
(million units)
17 40
16 35
30
15
25
14
20
13
15
12 10
11 5
10 0

EEN Atlantia share (€)
I FTSE/MIB rebased
i Volumes (millions units)
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Corporate bodies

Board of Directors
in office for 2013-2015

Internal Control, Risk and

Corporate Governance Committee

Committee of Independent
Directors with responsibility
for Related Party Transactions

O

9
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Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

Directors

Segretary
Chairman

Members

Chairman

Members

Fabio Cerchiai

Giovanni Castellucci

Carla Angela (independent)
Gilberto Benetton

Carlo Bertazzo

Bernardo Bertoldi (independent)
Alberto Clo (independent)
Gianni Coda (independent)
Massimo Lapucci

Lucy P, Marcus (independent)
Giuliano Mari (independent)
Valentina Martinelli

Monica Mondardini (independent)
Clemente Rebecchini

Paolo Zannoni

Andrea Grillo

Giuliano Mari (independent)
Carla Angela (independent)
Lucy P. Marcus (independent)

Giuliano Mari (independent)
Bernardo Bertoldi (independent)
Monica Mondardini (independent)



Human Resources and

Remuneration Commaittee

Supervisory Board

Ethic Officer

Board of Statutory Auditors

for three-year period 2012-2014

Independent Auditors
for the period 2012-2020

Chairman

Members

Coordinator

Members

Coordinator

Members

Chairman
Auditors

Alternate Auditors

Deloitte & Touche SpA

mmmmm  Corporate bodies I

Alberto Clo (independent)
Carlo Bertazzo
Gianni Coda (independent)

Massimo Lapucci

Monica Mondardini (independent)

Giovanni Ferrara
Simone Bontempo
Pietro Fratta

Giuseppe Langer
Giulio Barrel
Enzo Spoletini

Corrado Gatti

Tommaso Di Tanno
Raffaello Lupi

Milena Teresa Motta
Alessandro Trotter
Giuseppe Maria Cipolla
Fabrizio Riccardo Di Giusto

Annual Report 2013
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Group structure

Atlanti -
t antla — Alitalia - CAI 8.68% @

100%

au!ostradellpel fitalia

Italian motorways Overseas motorways Italian airports
Autostrade per I'ltalia 100% Brazil Aeroporti di Roma 95.9%
Tangenziale di Napoli 200% | Atlantia Bertin Concessdes 50% + 1 share ) ADR Engineering 100%
‘ Autostrade Meridionali 58.98% Triangulo do Sol Auto-Estradas 100% ADR Sviluppo 100%
Traforo del Monte Bianco 51% Rodovia das Colinas 100% ADR Tel 100%
| Raccordo Autostradale Valle d'Aosta 47.97% Concessionaria da Rodovia MG 050 100% ADR Assistance 100%
Autostrade dell’Atlantico 200% Concessionaria Rodovias do Tieté 50% @ ADR Advertising 51%
‘ TowerCo 100% ADR Security 100%
AD Moving 100% Chile ADR Mobility 100%
| Grupo Costanera 50.01% Fiumicino Energia 87.14% (1)
Costanera Norte 100% | Leonardo Energia 90%
Design and construction AMB 100%
Litoral Central 100%
Autopista Nororiente 100%
Spea Ingegneria Europea 100% Autopista Vespucio Sur SA 100%
Pavimental 99.40% Autostrade Holding do Sur 100%
| Los Lagos 100%
Technology Poland

| Stalexport Autostrady 61.20%
| Stalexport autostrada Matopolska 100%

Telepass 100%

Ecomouv 70% India
Ecomouv D&B 75% | Pune Solapur Expressways Private 50% @
ETCC 61.41%

Autostrade Tech 100%

(*) Through the holding company, Infra Bertin Participacées.
(1) Direct subsidiaries of Atlantia.
(2) Unconsolidatedcompanies.

Y
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Statement to Shareholders

Shareholders,

2013 was a year of strategic change for the Group. From 1 December the
merger of Gemina with and into Atlantia became effective, marking the
Group’s entry into the airports business. At the same time, 2013 witnessed the
growing contribution of our Latin American businesses, following the full-year

consolidation of the Chilean and Brazilian subsidiaries acquired in 2012.

The Group’s consolidation of Aeroporti di Roma (ADR) forms the basis for new
growth opportunities, with cash generation (in terms of EBITDA) close to almost
€3,000million in 2013.

The industrial benefits of the transaction are many. The Atlantia Group’s
expertise in the construction, operation and financing of infrastructure works will
have an immediate impact, starting with the planned expansion of Italy’s number
one airport. The transaction also reinforces the diversification of revenue

sources and will enable us to take advantage of the opportunities offered by global
economic growth, providing us with access to sector, such as air transport, that is

growing at a faster rate than domestic GDP.

The Group continued to invest in the upgrade of the Italian motorway network,
with a total of €880 million invested in 2013. Work on the widening of the A14
between Rimini and Porto Sant’Elpidio to three lanes proceeded, with almost
120 km, out of the 155 km planned, opened to traffic so far. Work also continued
on completion of the Variante di Valico, due to open to traffic in 2015.

Overseas, the Group is concentrated in major urban areas, in particular Santiago
and Sao Paulo, so as to exploit the widespread need for mobility driven by

population growth and rising consumption.

In Chile, the motorway operator, Costanera Norte reached agreement with the
grantor on 26 June 2013 regarding the implementation of a series of projects with
a value of approximately €320 million, named the “Programma Santiago Centro
Oriente”, which aims to eliminate the principal bottlenecks on the motorway

operated under concession in the capital’s urban districts and boost motorway

capacity.

Annual Report 2013 19
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In Brazil, the Group is engaged in the construction of around 100 km of orbital
motorway for Sao Paulo (the Rodoanel) under an agreement with the Bertin group.
Once work is completed, the operator of the new section of road, SPMAR,

will be absorbed into the joint venture controlled by Atlantia (Atlantia Bertin
Concessoes), which already operates a network of approximately 1,500 km
throughout the country, through the exercise of the option to convert the loan

granted into shares.

The Group continues to be the global leader in free-flow tolling systems and
is involved in the world’s largest satellite-based tolling project in France.
Unfortunately, the French government, having announced the introduction
of the service from I January 2014, then decided to postpone its launch on
27 October 2013, following protests by road hauliers in Brittany. Intense
negotiations are underway with the French government in order to find a

solution.

The merger has seen us create an integrated infrastructure specialist, capable of
combining size, expertise and know-how in the motorway sector with the rapid
growth being seen by airports. We believe that the merger Group can count on the
confidence and support of international investors, as the success of the last two
bond issues completed by Atlantia (€750 million) and ADR (€600 million) in
the fourth quarter of 2013 shows, in terms of both the number of applications
received and the terms and conditions, which are among the most advantageous
obtained by Italian issuers.

The Group now has the chance to consolidate its process of internationalisation,
whilst giving priority to integrating Aeroporti di Roma and driving the
expansion of Fiumicino airport. These are the strategic priorities to which we are
committed, in order to enable the new Atlantia to bring more investment to Italy
and more Italy to the world.

Fabio Cerchiai Giovanni Castellucci

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

O
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Foreword: Merger of Gemina with and into Atlantia

On 30 April 2013 general meetings of the shareholders of Atlantia SpA and Gemina SpA, meeting in
extraordinary session (and the special general meeting of Gemina’s savings shareholders meeting on 29 April
2013),voted to approve the plan for the merger of the two companies (subsequently supplemented by general
meetings of the same shareholders on 7 and 8 August 2013).

As a result of the merger Gemina’s shareholders were allocated: 1) newly issued ordinary shares in Atlantia

in application of the merger exchange ratio, ranking equally in all respects with Atlantia’s ordinary shares
outstanding at the Effective date, in the ratio of I newly issued Atlantia ordinary share for every 9 Gemina
ordinary shares and 1 newly issued Atlantia ordinary share for every 9 Gemina savings shares; and (i1)
Contingent Value Rights, in the ratio of T Contingent Value Right for each newly issued Atlantia ordinary
share.

As a result, all the ordinary and savings shares constituting Gemina’s entire issued capital have been cancelled
and delisted from the Borsa Italiana’s Mercato Telematico Azionario.

Following completion of the share exchanges and the allocation to former Gemina shareholders of
163,956,398 newly issued shares in Atlantia, Atlantia’s issued capital amounts to €825,783,990.00, consisting
of 825,783,990 ordinary shares with a par value of €1.00 each.

For further information reference should be made to the section, “Information on the merger of Gemina with
and into Atlantia”.

Annual Report 2013 21
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Consolidated financial review

Introduction

The financial review contained in this section includes and analyses the reclassified consolidated income
statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
changes in net debt and statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2013, in which amounts are
compared with those of the previous year. The review also includes and analyses the reclassified statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, compared with comparative amounts as at 31 December 2012,

and the reconciliation of Atlantia’s equity and profit for 2013 with the corresponding consolidated amounts.

There have not been any material changes in the accounting standards or accounting policies applied in the
preparation of this document with respect to those adopted for the consolidated financial statements for the
previous year. However, it should be noted that, in accordance with the amendment to IAS 1 published by the
IASB on 16 June 2011, and endorsed by the EU in June 2012, from 2013 components of the statement of
comprehensive income are to be classified by nature, grouping them into two categories: (i) items that, under
certain conditions, may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, as required by IFRS, and (ii) items that

will not be reclassified subsequently to proﬁt or loss.

The scope of consolidation at 3T December 2013 differs from that used in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012, essentially as a result of completion of the merger of Gemina SpA with
and into Atlantia SpA, which is analysed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013, to which reference should be made.

In particular, this transaction has resulted in inclusion in the Group’s consolidation of the companies
previously controlled by Gemina SpA (hereafter referred to as “former Gemina group companies”). As a result,
amounts in the statement of financial position, the income statement and the statement of cash flows for 2013
reflect the accounting effects of the merger which, as indicated in the merger executed on 20 November 2013,
date from 1 December 2013. In accordance with IFRS 3, the transaction is classified as a business combination
and Atlantia has been identified as the acquirer. As a result, the merger has been accounted for using the
acquisition method, provisionally estimating, as permitted by the above standard, the fair value of the assets

acquired and the liabilities assumed.

In addition, the income statement and statement of cash flows for 2013 benefit from the full-year
contributions of Autostrade Sud America (merged with and into Autostrade dell’Atlantico in June 2013) and
the other Chilean and Brazilian companies, consolidated from 1 April 2012 and 30 June 2012, respectively.
Details of these companies are provided in the Annual Report for 2012.

Annual Report 2013 25
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The terms “at constant exchange rates” and “on a like-for-like basis”, used in the following review, indicate that
amounts for comparative periods have been determined by eliminating:
a) from the consolidated amounts for 2013:
1) the contributions for the first quarter of Autostrade Sud America and its Chilean subsidiaries;
2) the contribution for the first half of the Brazilian companies of which control was acquired during
2012;
3) the contribution for the month of December of the former Gemina group companies;
4) movements in exchange rates, applying the same average exchange rates used in 2012 to amounts
for 2013;
b) from the consolidated amounts for 2012:
I) the gains and losses resulting from the corporate transactions completed in 2012 for the purposes
of the acquisition of control of Autostrade Sud America (and its Chilean subsidiaries) and
the subsequent sale of the minority interest in the sub-holding company, Grupo Costanera,
totalling €213.5 million. These gains and losses include, among other things, the gain (totalling
€170.8 million) resulting from fair value measurement of the investment in Autostrade Sud
America prior to its consolidation;
2) measurement using the equity method, in the first quarter of 2012, of Autostrade Sud
America;
3) the contribution of Autostrada Torino-Savona, reclassified in accordance with IFRS 5 following

completion of its sale in the fourth quarter of 2012.

The process of identifying the fair value at the acquisition date of the assets and liabilities of Autostrade
Sud America, and the Chilean and Brazilian companies consolidated from 2012, was completed in 2013.
As a result, as more fully described in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, amounts in both the
statement of financial position and the income statement at and for the year ended 31 December 2012 have

been restated with respect to the previously published amounts.

Finally, the Group did not enter into transactions, either with third or related parties, of a non-recurring,

atypical or unusual nature during 2013.

The reclassified financial statements analysed below have not been audited.

Y
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Consolidated results of operations

“Revenue’for 2013 amounts to €4,24.3.6 million, marking an increase of €209.2 million (5.2%) on 2012
(€4,034.4 million). On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, total revenue is up €74.5
million (1.8%).

“Toll revenue”of €3,539.3 million up €147.2 million (4.3%) on 2012 (€3,392.1 million). This reflects

the contribution for the first quarter of 2013 of the Chilean companies consolidated from 1 April 2012

(€33.1 million) and the contribution for the first half of 2013 of the Brazilian companies consolidated from

30 June 2012 (€82.4 million), in addition to the negative impact of exchange rate movements (a reduction

of €36.8 million). On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, toll revenue is up €68.5 million

(2.0%), reflecting a combination of the following:

a) application of annual toll increases for 2013 by the Group’s Italian operators (in Autostrade per I'Italia’s
case 3.54% ), boosting toll revenue by an estimated €87.2 million;

b) a1.6% decline in traffic on the Group’s Italian network, accounting for an estimated €45.7 million
reduction in toll revenue (including the impact of the different traffic mix);

¢) areduction (€6.4 million or 1.9%) in the contribution of toll increases matching the increased concession
fees payable by Italian operators @ o ANAS, linked to the decline in traffic;

d) reduced toll revenue from Autostrade Meridionali (down €13.1 million) due to the release in 2012 of
the accumulated "X variable” toll component, no longer recognised from 2013 following expiry of the
concession term and the extension of responsibility for operation of the motorway;

e) income deriving from cancellation, from 2012, of unused prepaid Viacard cards issued over 10 years
(€5.1 million in 2012);

f) an increase in toll revenue at overseas operators (up €4.8.0 million), reﬂecting traffic growth, toll increases
and the package of measures (tolls for vehicles with suspended axles) introduced by the Public Transport
Services Regulator for the State of Sao Paulo (ARTESP) to compensate operators in the State of Sao Paulo
following the decision to delay the application of toll increases from 12 July 2013.

(1) A toll increase of 3.47% was granted to the company from 1 January 2013, in addition to a further increase of 0.07% with effect from 12 April (as a result of
Decree 145 of 9 April 2013, issued by the Minister of Infrastructure and Transport,in agreement with the Minister of the Economy and Finance) regarding the
“K investments” component of tolls accruing in 2012 and provisionally suspended when determining the tolls to come into effect from 1 January 2013. The
increased revenue that should have been received in the period from 1 January to 11 April 2013 has been recovered via the toll increase for 2014.

(2) From 1 January 2011 the additional concession fees payable to ANAS, pursuant to Laws 102/2009 and 122/2010, calculated on the basis of the number of
kilometres travelled, amount to 6 thousandths of a euro per km for toll classes A and B and 18 thousandths of a euro per km for classes 3, 4 and 5.
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Reclassified consolidated income statement

(€M) INCREASE/(DECREASE)

2013 2012 ABSOLUTE %
Toll revenue 3,539.3 3,392.1 147.2 4.3
Aviation revenue 34.2 - 34.2 n.s.
Contract revenue 50.5 30.8 19.7 64.0
Other operating income 619.6 611.5 8.1 1.3
Total revenue @ 4,243.6 4,034.4 209.2 5.2
Cost of materials and external services ? -643.4 -616.9 -26.5 4.3
Concession fees -427.9 -430.8 2.9 -0.7
Staff costs -675.0 -680.0 5.0 0.7
Capitalised staff costs 84.5 90.9 -6.4 -7.0
Total net operating costs -1,661.8 -1,636.8 -25.0 1.5
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) ) 2,581.8 2,397.6 184.2 7.7
Amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses and reversals -696.8 -683.9 -12.9 1.9
of impairment losses
Provisions and other adjustments -69.2 -81.5 12.3 -15.1
Operating profit (EBIT) ) 1,815.8 1,632.2 183.6 11.2
Financial income from discounting to present value 85.5 41.7 43.8 n.s.
of concession rights and government grants
Financial expenses from discounting of provisions -96.3 -147.1 50.8 -34.5
for c_orjstruction services required by contract and other
provisions
Other financial income/(expenses) -710.3 -401.7 -308.6 76.8
Capitalised financial expenses 55.6 36.5 19.1 52.3
Share of profit/(loss) of associates and joint ventures -7.4 2.9 -10.3 n.s.
accounted for using the equity method
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,142.9 1,164.5 -21.6 -1.9
Income tax (expense)/benefit -422.1 -327.5 -94.6 28.9
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 720.8 837.0 -116.2 -13.9
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations 0.9 11.6 -10.7 -92.2
Profit for the year 721.7 848.6 -126.9 -15.0
(Profit)/Loss attributable to non-controlling interests -84.0 -18.2 -65.8 n.s.
(Profit) /Loss attributable to owners of the parent 637.7 830.4 -192.7 -23.2

(1) Operating income in this statement is different from revenue shown in the income statement in the consolidated financial statements, as revenue from
construction services, recognised on the basis of the services costs, staff costs and capitalised financial expenses incurred on services provided under
concession, are presented in this statement as a reduction in the respective operating costs and financial expenses.

(2) After deducting the margin recognised on construction services provided by the Group’s own technical units.

(3) EBITDA is calculated by deducting all operating costs, with the exception of amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses on assets and reversals of
impairment losses, provisions and other adjustments, from operating revenue.

(4) EBIT is calculated by deducting amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses on assets and reversals of impairment losses, provisions and other adjustments
from EBITDA. In addition, it does not include the capitalised component of financial expenses relating to construction services, included in revenue in the
income statement in the consolidated financial statements and shown in a specific line item under financial income and expenses in this statement.

2013 2012 INCREASE/
DECREASE

Basic earnings per share attributable 0.96 1.28 -0.32

to the owners of the parent (€)

of which:

- continuing operations 0.96 1.26 -0.30

- discontinued operations - 0.02 -0.02

Diluted earnings per share attributable 0.96 1.28 -0.32

to the owners of the parent (€)

of which:

- continuing operations 0.96 1.26 -0.30

- discontinued operations - 0.02 -0.02

Operating cash flow (€m) 1,663.1 1,508.0 155.1

of which:

- continuing operations 1,662.2 1,493.1 169.1

- discontinued operations 0.9 14.9 -14.0

Operating cash flow per share (€) 2.51 2.33 0.18

of which:

- continuing operations 2.51 2.31 0.20

- discontinued operations - 0.02 -0.02
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“Aviation revenue”of €34.2 million corresponds with the contribution from the former Gemina group

companies, consolidated from I December 2013.

“Contract revenue”of €50.5 million up €19.7 million on 2012 (€30.8 million), primarily reflecting an

increase in work carried out by Pavimental for external customers.

“Other operating income” of €619.6 million is up €8.1 million (1.3%) on 2012 (€611.5 million). After
stripping out changes in the scope of consolidation (amounting to an increase of €26.0 million, including
€18.8 million attributable to the former Gemina group companies, consolidated from I December 2013),
the contribution to the first nine months of 2012 of Port Mobility (€5.2 million), a company sold in the
fourth quarter of 2012, and the negative impact of exchange rate movements (a reduction of €4.5 million),
other operating income is down €8.2 million, primarily due to a reduction in payouts from insurance

companies.

“Net operating costs”for 2013 of €1,661.8 million are up €25.0 million (1.5%) on 2012 (€1,636.8
million). On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, net operating costs are down €21.4

million (1.3%).

The “Cost of materials and external services” amounts to €64.3.4 million, marking an increase of €26.5
million compared with 2012 (€616.9 million).Changes in the scope of consolidation account for €35.1
million, including €13.8 million attributable to the former Gemina group companies. On a constant currency
basis and on a like-for-like basis, the cost of materials and external services is in line with 2012, reflecting a
combination of the following:

a) a decrease in maintenance costs, primarily due to a reduction in the cost of winter operations, an increase
in insourcing at Autostrade per I'Italia, an increase in work carried out by Autostrade Meridionali in 2012
in view of the planned handover of infrastructure operated under concession, and reduced road surfacing
work carried out by Colinas;

b) reduced margins on the Eco-Taxe contract, primariiy due to postponement of the handover of the system
and of imposition of the tax, and reduced margins generated by the Group’s own technical units, mainly in
view of the reduced volume of major works carried out, partially offset by application, at the end of 2012, 0f
final price reductions established by the Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport;

¢) an increase in other costs, primarily as a result of greater costs incurred by Autostrade per I'Italia with
regard to settlements with service area sub-operators, the increase in costs incurred in the form of
consultants’ fees linked to the merger of Gemina SpA with and into Atlantia SpA, and the greater volume
of work carried out by Pavimental for external customers, offset by improvements in operating efficiency, a
reduction in the cost of corporate advertising and a reduction in costs attributable to Port Mobility, which
was sold at the end of 2012.

“Concession fees”, totalling €427.9 million, are down €2.9 million (0.7%) compared with 2012 (€430.8
million). On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, concession fees are down €6.8 million,
essentially reflecting the reduction in additional concession fees collected via the tolls charged by Italian
operators due to the above-mentioned decline in traffic.

“Staff costs” (before deducting capitalised expenses) of €675.0 million are down €5.0 million (0.7%) on 2012
(€680.0 million).

After stripping out the contributions from the Chilean and Brazilian companies consolidated in 2012 and the

former Gemina group companies, and adjusting for the deconsolidation of Port Mobility, staff costs are down

€21.1 million (3.1%) on a constant currency basis. This reflects:

a) adecrease of 406 (3.7%) in the average workforce;

b) an increase in the average unit cost (up 1.8%), primarily due to contract renewals at Italian
motorway operators for the periods 2010-2012 and 2013-2015, partly offset by the reduction in
variable staff;
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¢) aI.8% reduction in other staff costs, primarily due to reduced use of agency staff by Electronic Transaction
Consultants, Spea and EsseDiEsse (equal to a reduction of 100 on average) and a reduction in the cost of
early retirement incentives;

d) expansion of the activities of the French companies (Ecomouv’s contact centre) and of Giove Clear (up

0.6%).
“Capitalised staff costs” total €84..5 million for 2013, compared with the €90.9 million of 2012.

“Gross operating profit” (EBITDA) of €2,581.8 million is up €184..2 million (7.7%) from 2012 (€2,397.6
million). The contribution of the former Gemina group companies, consolidated fromI December 2013, is
€27.7 million.

On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, gross operating profit is up €95.9 million (4.0%).

“Operating profit” (EBIT) of €1,815.8 million is up €183.6 million (11.2%) from 2012 (€1,632.2 million).

On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, operating profit is up €138.9 million (8.5%),

reflecting, in addition to the above, a combination of the following:

a) a€21.5 million decrease in “Depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses and reversals of
impairment losses”, essentially due to:

. the impairment losses of €30.7 million recognised in 2012, reflecting the estimated value of the
amount payable to Autostrade Meridionali in relation to takeover rights;

. a €9.2 million increase in depreciation and amortisation, essentially regarding increased amortisation
of concession rights;

b) areduction of €21.5 million in “Provisions and other adjustments”, primarily reﬂecting:

1) changes in provisions for the repair and replacement of assets to be handed over at the end of
concession terms, amounting to €57.3 million, due mainly to the positive impact, compared with the
comparative period, of changes in discount rates;

2) an increase in other provisions, totalling €18.8 million, linked to outstanding litigation;

3) an increase of €17.1 million in impairment losses, essentially reflecting trade receivables attributable to
Electronic Transaction Consultants and linked to disputes in the process of settlement, as described in

note 10.6 to the consolidated financial statements.

“Financial income from the discounting to present value of concession rights and government grants”
amounts to €85.5 million, marking an increase of €43.8 million from 2012. On a constant currency basis
and on a like-for-like basis, the ﬁgure, reﬂecting the impact of the passage of time on financial assets deriving
from concession rights and government grants discounted to present value, is up €36.0 million, reflecting the

greater contributions of Ecomouv and Los Lagos.

“Financial expenses from the discounting to present value of provisions for construction services required
by contract and other provisions”, linked to the passage of time, amount to €96.3 million and are down
€50.8 million on 2012. This is primarily due to the performance of provisions for construction services
required by contract, which essentially reflected a decline in the interest rates used to discount provisions at

31 December 2012, compared with the rates used at 31 December 2011.

“Net other financial expenses” of €710.3 million are up €308.6 million from 2012 (€401.7 million). The
figure for 2012 benefitted from the gains resulting from the corporate transactions completed in 2012 for the
purposes of the acquisition of control of Autostrade Sud America (and its Chilean subsidiaries) including,
among other things, the gain (totalling €170.8 million) resulting from fair value measurement of the

investment in Autostrade Sud America held prior to its consolidation.

On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, the increase is €63.4 million (10.3%), essentially
reflecting:

a) the impact of the transactions that took place in 2012, such as recognition of the gain on the sale of
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the investment in IGLI and the expenses incurred in relation to the partial buyback of Atlantia’s bonds
maturing in 2014 (totalling €34..6 million);

b) an increase of €59.1 million in debt servicing costs, essentially due to the increase in average financial debt.
The increase includes approximately €42 million relating to the differential between the cost of funding
incurred in order to raise the cash needed by the Group and the return on the investment of liquidity. In
view of the redemption of Atlantia’s bonds with a par value of €2,094.2 million maturing in June 2014,
the Group obtained financing to fund full repayment of the debt;

¢) the difference in the contributions to net financial income in the two comparative periods of the Chilean
and Brazilian companies consolidated in 2012, totalling €17.2 million;

d) the reduced impairment loss (€13.7 million in 2013, compared with €23.4 million in 2012) on the

carrying amount of the investment in Alitalia—Compagnia Aerea Italiana.

“Capitalised financial expenses”, amounting to €55.6 million, are up €19.1 million on 2012 (€36.5 million),
essentially due to the increased value of capital expenditure in progress and above all substantial completion of

the Eco-Taxe project.

“Income tax expense” for 2013 totals €4.22.1 million. In addition to the increase in tax for 2013 resulting
from the above improvement in profit before tax, the increase of €94.6 million (28.9%) compared with2012
(€327.5 million) reflects the fact that 2012 benefitted from non-recurring income in the form of a refund for
the deduction of IRAP from IRES, amounting to €30.3 million.

“Profit from continuing operations” amounts to €720.8 million, down €116.2 million (13.9%) from 2012
(€837.0 million). On a constant currency basis and on a like-for-like basis, profit from continuing operations

is up €90.6 million (14.6%).

The “Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations”, totalling €0.9 million, includes the dividends received
from the Portuguese company, Lusoponte, in the process of being sold, whilst the amount for 2012 (€11.6
million) included the Group’s share of the proﬁt of Autostrada Torino-Savona, an investee company sold and
deconsolidated in 2012.

“Profit for the year”, amounting to €721.7 million, is down €126.9 million (15.0%) from 2012
(€84.8.6million).

“Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent” (€637.7 million) is down €192.7 million (23.2%)
from the ﬁgure for 2012 (€830.4. million), whilst Proﬁt attributable to non-controlling interests amounts
to €84.0 million (€18.2 million in 2012), reflecting the greater contribution of the Chilean and Brazilian
companies consolidated in 2012.

After stripping out the accounting effects of exchange rate movements and changes in the scope of
consolidation, profit attributable to owners of the parent is €638.8 million, an increase of €36.6 million

(6.1%), whilst profit attributable to non-controlling interests is up €54.7 million.

Operating cash flow for 2013, as defined in the section “Consolidated financial highlights”, to which reference

should be made, amounts to €1,663.1 million, up €155.I million (10.3%) from 2012. On a like-for-like basis,

operating cash flow is up €61.3 million (4.1%), reflecting:

a) an increase in cash flow from operating activities for the above reasons;

b) areduction in cash used in financing activities, which in 2012 partly reflected the cost of the partial
buyback of bonds issued by Atlantia and maturing in 2014, totalling €33.3 million;

¢) an increase in current tax expense (which in 2012 benefitted from a refund for the deduction of IRAP

from IRES).

Operating cash flow is primarily absorbed by the Group’s investing activities.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(€M) 2013 2012
Profit for the year (A) 721.7 848.6
Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 51.4 -93.6
Fair value gains/(losses) on net investment hedges 1.2 -37.6
Gains/(losses) from translation of transactions in functional currencies other than -387.8 -7.6
the euro concluded by consolidated companies

Gains/(Losses) from translation of transactions in functional currencies other than -6.4 -0.2
the euro concluded by associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity

method

Other fair value gains/(losses) - -1.5
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year reclassifiable to profit or loss, -341.6 -140.5
after related taxation (B)

Gains/(losses) from actuarial valuations of provisions for employee benefits 4.2 -23.7
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year not reclassifiable to profit or loss, 4.2 -23.7
after related taxation (C)

Reclassifications of other components of comprehensive income to profit or loss (D) 1.7 -20.8
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, after related taxation and -335.7 -185.0
reclassifications to profit or loss (E = B + C + D)

Comprehensive income for the year (A + D) 386.0 663.6
of which:

- attributable to owners of the parent 498.3 653.8
- attributable to non-controlling interests -112.3 9.8

For 2013 the other comprehensive loss for the year, after the related taxation, amounts to €335.7 million (a

loss of €185.0 million in 2012), essentially reflecting the following main components:

a) aloss on the translation of transactions denominated in functional currencies other than the euro,
totalling €387.8 million, substantially reflecting falls in the value of the Chilean peso and the Brazilian
real against the euro. The depreciation of these currencies in 2013 resulted in a corresponding reduction
(attributable both to the portion attributable to owners of the parent and to non-controlling interests) in
the conversion into euros of the net assets of overseas operators, essentially consisting of intangible assets
deriving from concession rights and the related deferred taxation, recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at fair value at the time of acquisition of such operators;

b) a gain on the fair value measurement of cash flow hedges, totalling €51.4 million (a loss of €93.6 million
in 2012), essentially reﬂecting a rise in interest rates in 20193 (compared with the reduction in interest rates

in 2012).

Consolidated financial position

As at 3T December 2013 “Non-current non-financial assets” of €27,302.2 million are up €3,930.7 million
from the figure for 31 December 2012 (€23,371.5 million), essentially due to the accounting effects of the
merger of Gemina with and into Atlantia.

“Intangible assets” total €25,080.6 million (€21,104.7 million as at 31 December 2012). In addition to
the goodwill (€4,382.7 million) recognised as at 31 December 2003, following acquisition of the majority
shareholding in the former Autostrade - Concessioni e Costruzioni Autostrade SpA, these assets include
the Group’s concession rights, amounting to €20,65I.6 million (€16,680.6 million as at 31 December
2012).

The increase in intangible assets, totalling €3,975.9 million, is essentially due to:
a) the recognition of intangible assets deriving from the airport concession held by the former Gemina group
companies (up €5,103.6 million), which also includes the gain provisionally allocated to Aeroporti di

Roma’s concession, as more fully described in note 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements;
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b) investment in construction services for which additional economic benefits are received (up €422.6

million);

¢) amortisation for the year (down €638.7 million);

d) areduction resulting from currency translation differences, essentially reflecting the performances of the

Chilean peso and the Brazilian real (down €573.8 million);

e) adjustment of the present value on completion of investment in construction services for which no

additional benefits are received (down €316.5 million).

Reclassified consolidated statement of financial position

(€M) 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
Non-current non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment 233.0 233.8 -0.8
Intangible assets 25,080.6 21,104.7 3,975.9
Investments 159.1 119.4 39.7
Deferred tax assets 1,820.9 1,911.5 -90.6
Other non-current assets 8.6 2.1 6.5
Total non-current non-financial assets (A) 27,302.2 23,371.5 3,930.7
Working capital @

Trading assets 1,332.0 1,153.2 178.8
Current tax assets 68.9 131.1 -62.2
Other current assets 153.8 132.5 21.3
Non-financial assets held for sale or related to 16.5 15.8 0.7
discontinued operations @

Current portion of provisions for construction services -433.6 -489.8 56.2
required by contract

Current provisions -463.8 -189.9 -273.9
Trading liabilities -1,446.8 -1,428.0 -18.8
Current tax liabilities -40.5 -20.7 -19.8
Other current liabilities -506.9 -449.7 -57.2
Total working capital (B) -1,320.4 -1,145.5 -174.9
Invested capital less current liabilities (C = A + B) 25,981.8 22,226.0 3,755.8
Non-current non-financial liabilities

Non-current portion of provisions for construction -3,728.4 -4,321.4 593.0
services required by contract

Non-current provisions -1,267.4 -1,150.4 -117.0
Deferred tax liabilities -1,910.3 -1,011.8 -898.5
Other non-current liabilities -93.6 -106.3 12.7
Total non-current non-financial liabilities (D) -6,999.7 -6,589.9 -409.8
NET INVESTED CAPITAL (E = C + D) 18,982.1 15,636.1 3,346.0

(1) Calculated as the difference between current non-financial assets and liabilities.
(2) The presentation of assets and liabilities related to discontinued operations is based on their nature (financial or non-financial).
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(€M) 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 6,484.6 3,818.7 2,665.9
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 1,728.4 1,708.0 20.4
Total equity (F) 8,213.0 5,526.7 2,686.3
Net debt

Non-current net debt

Non-current financial liabilities 14,456.4 14,438.4 18.0
Bond issues 10,191.1 10,164.6 26.5
Medium/long-term borrowings 3,728.8 3,867.3 -138.5
Non-current derivative liabilities 495.7 366.2 129.5
Other non-current financial liabilities 40.8 40.3 0.5
Other non-current financial assets -2,328.7 -1,934.0 -394.7
Non-current financial assets deriving from concession -1,296.7 -1,037.7 -259.0
rights

Non-current financial assets deriving from government -247.5 -237.0 -10.5
grants

Non-current term deposits convertible -332.8 -307.7 -25.1
Non-current derivative assets 5.4 - 5.4
Other non-current financial assets -446.3 -351.6 94.7
Non-current net debt (G) 12,127.7 12,504.4 -376.7

Current net debt

Current financial liabilities 3,858.3 1,357.3 2,501.0
Bank overdrafts 7.2 0.1 7.1
Short-term borrowings 3.0 - 3.0
Current derivative liabilities 0.1 0.1 -
Intercompany current account payables due to unconsolidated 13.5 24.8 -11.3
Group companies

Current portion of medium/long-term borrowings 3,530.5 1,293.1 2,237.4
Other current financial liabilities 304.0 39.2 264.8
Cash and cash equivalents -4,414.2 -2,811.2 -1,603.0
Cash in hand and at bank and post offices -2,435.8 -470.0 -1,965.8
Cash equivalents -1,978.4 -2,341.2 362.8
Other current financial assets -802.7 -941.1 138.4
Current financial assets deriving from concession rights -413.1 -386.5 -26.6
Current financial assets deriving from government grants -19.0 -23.8 4.8
Current term deposits convertible -191.7 -355.0 163.3
Current derivative assets -0.1 - 0.1
Current portion of medium/long-term financial assets -51.0 -133.0 82.0
Other current financial assets -126.2 -41.2 -85.0
Financial assets held for sale or related to discontinued -1.6 -1.6 -
operations @

Current net debt (H) -1,358.6 -2,395.0 1,036.4
Net debt (1 = G + H) @ 10,769.1 10,109.4 659.7
NET DEBT AND EQUITY (L=F +1) 18,982.1 15,636.1 3,346.0

(2) The presentation of assets and liabilities related to discontinued operations is based on their nature (financial or non-financial).

(3) Net debt includes non-current financial assets, unlike the “Analysis of consolidated net debt” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements that is
prepared as required by the ESMA (formerly CESR) recommendation of 10 February 2005, which does not permit non-current financial assets to be deducted
from debt.
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“Investments”, totalling €159.1 million (€119.4 million as at 31 December 2012), are up €39.7 million. The

change primarily reflects:

a) capital contributions made by Autostrade per I'Italia in respect of Tangenziali Esterne di Milano, totalling
€16.0 million, and by Atlantia in respect of Alitalia - Compagnia Aerea Italiana, totalling €26.0 million,
partially offset by the impairment loss on the carrying amount of this investment, amounting to
€13.7 million;

b) impact of accounting for the investment in Rodovias do Tieté (up €10.7 million) following the merger
of Atlantia Bertin Participacdes (previously 50%-owned) with and into the sub-holding, Atlantia Bertin

Concessoes.

“Deferred tax assets” of €1,820.9 million are down €90.6 million, primarily due to the release of
€105.8 million in deferred tax assets on the deductible portion of the goodwill recognised by Autostrade per

I'Italia as a result of the contribution in 2003.

Working capital reports a negative balance of €1,320.4 million, compared with a negative balance of
€1,145.5 million as at 31 December 2012, marking a reduction of €174.9 million. After stripping out the
change deriving from the consolidation of the former Gemina group companies, amounting to a reduction of
€185.9 million, this item is up €I11.0 million, reflecting a combination of the following:

a) areduction of €120.5 million in trading liabilities, primarily reflecting both the reduced amount of work
contracted to Pavimental by Autostrade per I'Italia and reduced investment in motorway infrastructure by
Autostrade per I'Italia and contracted to third parties;

b) areduction in other current liabilities of €61.5 million, reflecting reduced amounts payable for
expropriations, linked to the decrease in investment, and the reduction in fees payable to public bodies
following changes to due dates for the payment of sub-concession fees;

¢) anetincrease in the current portion of provisions, essentially linked to an increase in the volume
of work on the repair and replacement of assets held under concession, partially offset by expected
investment in construction services for which no additional economic benefits are received, totalling
€93.0 million;

d) areduction of €43.0 million in net current tax assets, primarily due to offset of the tax credit deriving
from the previous year against prepayments payable for 2013, partially offset by prepayments made by the
former Gemina group companies in December;

e) adecrease in trading assets, totalling €23.5 million, essentially reflecting:

I) movements in the amount of motorway tolls assessed and collected;

2) impairment losses, as a result of the outstanding disputes referred to above, of Electronic Transaction
Consultants’ trade receivables;

3) the reduced volume of work carried out by Pavimental for Group companies and a reduction in
advances paid to suppliers by Ecomouv D&B, reflecting substantial completion of the Eco-Taxe
project;

f) areduction of €12.2 million in other current assets, essentially reflecting refundable VAT.

“Non-current non-financial liabilities”, totalling €6,999.7 million, are up €409.8 million from the figure
for 31 December 2012 (€6,589.9 million), essentially reflecting:
a) an increase in deferred tax liabilities not eligible for offsetting of €898.5 million. This change is essentially
due to the recognition of deferred tax liabilities of €1,180.6 million linked to the provisional allocation
of gains accounted for as a result of the merger, partially offset by a reduction deriving from the impact
of exchange rate movements on deferred taxation, totalling €163.7 million, primarily accounted for in
relation to the Chilean and Brazilian acquisitions completed in previous years;
b) an increase of €117.0 million in provisions, primarily due to provisions for the year (€358.6 million),
the impact of first-time consolidation of the former Gemina group companies (up €240.4 million) and
discounting to present value (up €32.8 million), partially offset by reclassification of the current portion

(down €502 4 million);
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¢) areduction in provisions for construction services required by contract, totalling €593.0 million,
resulting primarily from reclassification of the current portion (down €335.I million) and adjustment of
the present value on completion of investment in construction services (down €312.2 million), linked to
the rise in current and future interest rates, partly offset by the cost of discounting to present value (up

€59.7 million).

As a result, “Net invested capital”, totalling €18,982.1 million, is up €3,34.6.0 million from the figure for

31 December 2012 (€15,636.1 million).

“Equity attributable to owners of the parent and non-controlling interests” totals €8,213.0 million
(€5,526.7 million as at 3T December 2012). "Equity attributable to owners of the parent", totalling €6,484.6
million, is up €2,665.9 million from the figure for 31 December 2012 (€3,818.7 million), essentially
reflecting a combination of:

a) the increase in issued capital (€163.9 million in terms of par value) and recognition of the merger reserve
resulting from the net assets fair value measurement acquired by the merger (€2,538.2 million);

profit for the year (€637.7 million);

payment of the final dividend for 2012 (down €253.6 million) and of the interim dividend for 2013
(down €288.6 million);

the above other comprehensive loss for the year, totalling €139.4 million.

b)
9

d)

“Equity attributable to non-controlling interests” of €1,728.4 million is up €20.4 million on the figure

for 31 December 2012 (€1,708.0 million). This essentially reflects consolidation of the former Gemina group
companies (up €119.5 million), profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests (up €84.0 million)
and the increases deriving from the merger of Atlantia Bertin with and into the sub-holding, Atlantia Bertin
Concessdes (up €21.2million), partially offset by the reduction in the foreign currency translation reserve after
the above falls in value of the Chilean peso and the Brazilian real against the euro (down €197.6 million) and by
the payment of dividends (down €8.7 million).

Reconciliation of Atlantia’s equity and profit for the year and the corresponding consolidated

amounts
(€M) EQUITY 31.12.2013 PROFIT FOR 2013
Amounts in financial statements of Atlantia SpA 9,329.1 666.5
Recognition in consolidated financial statements of equity and profit/(loss) 9,326.9 985.9
for the year of investments less non-controlling interests
Elimination of carrying amount of consolidated investments -12,805.0
Elimination of impairment losses on consolidated investments less reversals 78.5 19.1
Elimination of intercompany dividends - -1,027.6
Elimination of after-tax intercompany profits -4,217.4
Recognition of goodwill less non-controlling interests 4,380.7
Measurement of investments at fair value and using the equity method less -1.3 5.2
dividends received
Other consolidation adjustments ) 393.1 -1.0
Consolidated carrying amounts (attributable to owners of the parent) 6,484.6 637.7
Consolidated carrying amounts (attributable to non-controlling interests) 1,728.4 84.0
Carrying amounts in consolidated financial statements 8,213.0 721.7

(*) Other consolidation adjustments essentially include the different amounts, in the consolidated financial statements, for gains and/or losses on the sale of
investments with respect to the corresponding amounts included in the reporting packages of consolidated companies, and the effects of remeasurement at
fair value, solely for the purposes of consolidation, of previously held interests following the acquisition of control of the related companies.
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The Group’s net debt as at 31 December 2013 amounts to €10,769.1 million (€10,109.4 million as at
31 December 2012). After stripping out the contribution as at I December 2013 of the former Gemina group
companies, totalling €84.3.3 million, the Group’s net debt is down €183.6 million.

After stripping out the contribution as at I December 2013 of the former Gemina group companies (totalling

€1,013.5 million) non-current net debt is down €1,390.2 million on 31 December 2012 (€12,504.4.

million). Non-current net debt consists of:

a) mnon-current financial liabilities of €13,44.2.9 million, which have fallen €995.5 million on a like-for-
like basis. This primarily reflects:

1) reclassification to short-term of bonds maturing in the next twelve months (€2,482.1 million) and of
certain medium/long—term bonds (€669.8 million);

2) areduction in the financial liabilities of overseas companies (€234..0 million) following depreciation
of the related currencies against the euro;

3) new bond issues by Atlantia (€812.8 million), Aeroporti di Roma (€592.2 million) and the Brazilian
operators (€621.3 million), and draw downs on loan facilities by Ecomouv (€24.6.0 million) and
Autostrade per I'Italia (€100 million) in relation to the loans granted in 2008 by Cassa Depositi e
Prestiti and SACE;

b) non-current financial assets of €2,328.%7 million, marking an increase, on a like-for-like basis,

of €394.7 million, essentially due to an increase in financial assets deriving from concession rights

resulting from investment in the Eco-Taxe project (€28%.2 million) and an increase in other non-

current financial assets (€94.7 million), primarily reflecting an increase in the medium/long—term
receivable due to Atlantia Bertin Concessdes as a result of convertible bonds issued by Infra Bertin

Empreendimentos (€347.6 million as at 31 December 2013), which controls the project company,

SPMAR, the holder of the concession for the construction and operation of the orbital motorway

serving the south east of Sao Paulo.

Current net funds, after stripping out the contribution as at I December 2013 of the former Gemina group
companies (net debt of €170.2 million), amount to €1,188.4 million (€2,395.0 million as at 3T December
2012).

The reduction of €1,206.6 million essentially reflects:

a) the reclassification of bonds (€2,094.2 million) maturing in June 2014, and the above reclassifications
carried out by Autostrade per I'Italia and the former Gemina group companies (totalling €951.7
million), partially offset by the redemption of bonds (€522.5 million), essentially by Rodovias das
Colinas and Triangulo do Sol following refinancing transactions and the repayment of bank borrowings
(€351.6 million);

b) an increase in other current financial liabilities (€264..8 million), essentially following the recognition
of amounts payable in the form of the interim dividend for 2013, paid in January 2014 (€288.6
million);

¢) adecrease in the current portion of term deposits (€188.2 million), essentially reflecting a reduction in
amounts in the project accounts of overseas companies and use of the deposit to increase the loan that
Atlantia Bertin Concessdes is disbursing to Infra Bertin Empreendimentos (to be completed by 2014) and
the release of Autostrade Holding do Sur’s term deposits;

d) an increase in cash (€1,394.9 million), essentially due to the liquidity acquired as a result of bond issues,

after the repayment of borrowings and the payment of dividends.

Annual Report 2013 37



| . |
I 2. Report on operations [N

Statement of changes in consolidated equity

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

ISSUED CAPITAL CASH FLOW NET INVESTMENT
HEDGE RESERVE HEDGE RESERVE

Balance as at 31 December 2011 630.3 41.1 -

Comprehensive income for the year - -87.6 -37.6

Owner transactions and other changes

Bonus issue 31.5 - -

Final dividend approved - R R

Retained earnings for previous year - - R

Interim dividend - - R

Changes in the scope of consolidation, capital contributions, reclassifications and other changes - -0.1 -
Balance as at 31 December 2012 661.8 -46.6 -37.6
Comprehensive income for the year - 47.7 1.2

Owner transactions and other changes

Bonus issue 163.9 - -

Final dividend approved - R R

Retained earnings for previous year - - R

Interim dividend - - R

Exercise of options awarded under share-based incentive plans - - -

Formation of merger reserve - B R

Changes in the scope of consolidation, capital contributions, reclassifications and other changes - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2013 825.7 11 -36.4

The Group’s ordinary operating and ﬁnancing activities expose it to market risks, primarily regarding interest
rate and currency risks linked to the financial assets acquired and the financial liabilities assumed, in addition
to liquidity and credit risks.

The Group’s financial risk management strategy is consistent with the objectives set by Atlantia’s Board of
Directors. The strategy aims to both manage and control such risks, wherever possible mitigating interest rate
and currency risks and minimising borrowing costs, taking account of the interests of stakeholders, as defined
in the Group’s Financial Policy.

The components of the Group’s derivatives portfolio as at 31 December 2013 are classified as cash flow or fair
value hedges, in application of IAS 39, on the basis of the specific risk being hedged.

Based on the positive outcome of tests of effectiveness of cash flow hedges as at 31 December 2013, changes in
fair value have been recognised in full in comprehensive income.

During 2013 the Group entered into new derivatives classified as fair value hedges, designed to convert the
bonds originally issued by Triangulo do Sol and Rodovias das Colinas to a floating nominal CDI rate from the
original real IPCA rate. Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognised in profit or loss and are
offset by matching changes in the fair value of the underlying liabilities.

The residual weighted average term to maturity of the Group’s interest bearing debt is approximately 6 years at
31 December 2013.

90% of the Group’s debt is fixed rate.
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EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY

RESERVE FOR
TRANSLATION
DIFFERENCES ON
TRANSACTIONS
IN FUNCTIONAL
CURRENCIES
OTHER THAN THE
EU

RESERVE FOR
ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES
ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY
METHOD

OTHER RESERVES
AND RETAINED
EARNINGS

TREASURY
SHARES

PROFIT/(LOSS)
FOR PERIOD

ATTRIBUTABLE
TO NON-
CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE
PARENT AND
NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

9.4 20.6 2,419.8 -215.6 679.2 3,566.0 464.6 4,030.6
-4.7 -22.4 -24.3 - 830.4 653.8 9.8 663.6

- - -31.5 - - - -

- - - -241.5 -241.5 -13.4 -254.9

- - 437.7 -437.7 - - -

- - - -230.2 -230.2 -0.2 -230.4

6.6 -1.0 65.1 - 70.6 1,247.2 1,317.8
-7.5 -2.8 2,866.8 -215.6 600.2 3,818.7 1,708.0 5,526.7
-190.3 2.3 4.3 - 637.7 498.3 -112.3 386.0
- - - - 163.9 - 163.9

- - - -253.6 -253.6 -8.5 -262.1

- - 346.5 -346.5 - - -

- - - -288.6 -288.6 0.2 -288.8

- - 2.0 7.3 . 5.3 - 5.3

- - 2,538.2 - 2,538.2 - 2,538.2

- 0.1 2.3 - 2.4 141.4 143.8
-197.8 -5.0 5,756.1 -208.3 349.2 6,484.6 1,728.4 8,213.0

18% of the Group’s debt is denominated in currencies other than the euro. Taking account of foreign exchange

hedges and the proportion of debt denominated in the local currency of the country in which the relevant

Group company operates (around 10%), the Group’s net debt is not exposed to currency risk on translation

into euros.

The average cost of the Group’s medium/long-term borrowings in 2013 was approximately 5.2% (4..7% for the

companies operating in Italy, 7.3% for the Chilean companies and 10.1% for the Brazilian companies).

As at 31 December 2013 project debt attributable to specific overseas companies amounts to €2,196.8 million.

At the same date the Group has cash reserves of €8,380 million, consisting of:

a) €4,414 million in cash and/or investments maturing within 120 days;

b) €525 million in term deposits allocated primarily to part finance the execution of specific construction

)

services and to service the debt of the Chilean companies;

€3,441 million in undrawn committed lines of credit. The Group has lines of credit with a weighted

average residual term to maturity of approximately 8.5 years and a weighted average residual drawdown

period of approximately 2.2 years, including:

1)

2)

€300 million representing the unused portion of the €300 million loan obtained from the European

Investment Bank in December 2010, to be drawn down until December 2014;

€800 million representing the unused portion of the loan granted by Cassa Depositi e Prestiti and
SACE, to be drawn down until September 2014 and maturing in 2024;
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3) €500 million representing the unused portion of the new loan granted by Cassa Depositi e Prestiti on
21 December 2012, to be drawn down by November 2016 and maturing in 2027;

4) €1,000 million available under a committed Revolving Credit Facility with Mediocredito acting as
Agent Bank, unused as at 31 December 2013 and maturing in June 2015;

5) €450 million relating to the unused portion of the facilities agreed with the European Investment
Bank in September 2013, with €200 million draw able until March 2016 and maturing in September
2033, and €250 million draw able until September 2015 and maturing in September 2035;

6) €I4I million representing the unused portion of the loans obtained to finance the Eco-Taxe
project;

7) €250 million regarding the Revolving Credit Facility obtained by the Aeroporti di Roma group,
maturing in December 2018 and unused as at 31 December 2013.

The Group’s net debt, as defined according to the European Securities and Markets Authority - ESMA
(formerly CESR) recommendation of 10 February 2005 (which does not permit the deduction of non-current
financial assets from debt), amounts to €13,097.8 million as at 31 December 2013, compared with €12,04.3.4
million as at 31 December 2012.This primarily reflects the debt contributed by first-time consolidation of the

former Gemina group companies.

Consolidated cash flow

Operating activities generated cash flows of €1,502.0 million in 2013, up €352.8 million on 2012 (€1,149.2

million). The increase primarily reflects:

a) an increase in operating cash flow (up €155.I million from 2012), as noted above;

b) the reduced amount of cash used for non-financial assets and liabilities (up €247.5 million compared with
2012), primarily due to the offset of the tax credit deriving from the previous year against prepayments due
for 2013.

Cash used for investment in non-financial assets amounts to €1,759.0 million, essentially reflecting:

a) the debt contributed by the former Gemina group companies, totalling €84.3.3 million;

b) investment in assets held under concession, after the related government grants and the increase in
financial assets deriving from concession rights, amounting to €770.5 million;

¢) increases in investments, essentially reflecting the contributions paid to Alitalia - Compagnia Aerea
Italiana and Tangenziali Esterne di Milano, totalling €4.4..8 million.

In 2012 the outflow of €1,914.0 million was due to the amount invested in the acquisition of control
of the Chilean and Brazilian companies, including net debt assumed (totalling €1,421.3 million) and
investment in assets held under concession (a net amount of €1,178.0 million), after the proceeds from
the sales of the 30% interest in Grupo Costanera held by Autostrade Sud America (€477.6 million), of
the investment in Autostrada Torino-Savona (€221.6 million) and of the investment in IGLI (€8%7.6

million).

The cash outflow resulting from changes in equity during 2013 amounts to €493.0 million, essentially
reflecting dividends approved by Atlantia (€54.2.2 million) and by other Group companies for payment to their
non-controlling shareholders (€8.7 million).

The corresponding outflow in 2012 was essentially due to the dividends approved by Atlantia and other
Group companies and payable to non-controlling shareholders (€4.85.3 million), partially offset by the
capital contribution to Grupo Costanera by the previously mentioned Canadian pension fund (€351.8

million).
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In 2013 net debt was reduced by €90.3 million, resulting from the change in the fair value of financial
instruments recognised in comprehensive income (€6%.2 million), and from financial income and expenses

accounted for as increases in financial assets and liabilities (€23.1 million).

In 2012, on the other hand, net debt increased by €201.1 million, almost entirely as a result of changes in the
fair value of financial instruments recognised in comprehensive income.

The overall impact of the above cash flows has resulted in an increase in net debt of €659.7million, essentially
reflecting the impact of first-time consolidation of the former Gemina group companies. This compares with
an increase of €1,139.2 million in 2012.
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Statement of changes in consolidated net debt ©
(€M) 2013 2012
Profit for the year 721.7 848.6
Adjusted by:
Amortisation and depreciation 696.8 653.2
Provisions 63.8 81.6
Financial expenses from discounting of provisions for construction services required 96.3 148.1
by contract and other provisions
Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment losses) on non-current financial assets 13.7 -124.7
and investments accounted for at cost or fair value
Share of (profit)/loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity 7.4 2.9
method
Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment losses) and adjustments of other - 8.6
non-current assets
(Gain)/Loss on sale of non-current assets -0.2 -58.0
Net change in deferred tax (assets)/liabilities through profit or loss 76.9 26.6
Other non-cash costs (income) -13.0 -40.1
Change in working capital -129.3 -112.2
Other changes in non-financial assets and liabilities -32.1 -279.6
Net cash from operating activities (A) 1,502.0 1,149.2
Investment in assets held under concession -1,163.6 -1,548.6
Government grants related to assets held under concession 35.1 39.7
Increase in financial assets deriving from concession rights (related to capital 358.0 330.9
expenditure)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment -59.2 -56.5
Purchases of intangible assets -24.1 -256.2
Purchase of investments, net of unpaid called-up issued capital -44.8 -26.0
Investiments in consolidated companies, including net debt assumed -12.9 -1,421.3
Debt contributed by the former Gemina group companies -843.3 -
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 1.9 89.8
and unconsolidated investments
Proceeds from sale of consolidated investments, after net debt transferred - 702.3
Net change in other non-current assets 6.1 0.9
Net cash from/(used in) investment in non-financial assets (B) -1,759.0 -1,914.0
Dividends declared by Group companies -550.9 -485.3
Contributions from non-controlling shareholders 1.3 351.8
Proceeds from transfer of treasury shares due to exercise of rights 5.3 -
under share-based incentive plans
Effect of changes in exchange rates on net debt and other changes 51.3 -39.8
Net equity cash outflows (C) -493.0 -173.3
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) -750.0 -938.1
Change in fair value and extinguishment of financial instruments recognised 67.2 -184.0
in comprehensive income (D)
Financial income/(expenses) accounted for as an increase in financial assets/ 23.1 7.4
(liabilities) @
Decrease/(Increase) in net debt for year (A + B+ C + D + E) -659.7 -1,139.2
Net debt at beginning of year -10,109.4 -8,970.2
Net debt at end of year -10,769.1 -10,109.4

(1) This statement of changes in consolidated net debt differs from the consolidated statement of cash flows insofar as it:

(a) presents the impact of cash flows generated or used during the period on consolidated net debt, as defined above, rather than on net cash and cash
equivalents;

(b) shows the change in operating capital, consisting of trade-related items directly linked to the ordinary activities of the business concerned;

(c) does not include changes in current and non-current financial assets and shows investments in consolidated companies and proceeds from the sale
of previously consolidated companies after deducting the net debt on the books of these companies, rather than less any net cash on the books of the
companies consolidated or sold;

(d) does not include changes in current and non-current financial liabilities and shows dividends approved during the reporting period, rather than dividends
effectively paid in the reporting period;

(e) shows changes in the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

(2) This item essentially regards capitalised financial income on the medium/long-term receivable represented by convertible bonds issued by Infra Bertin
Empreendimentos, which controls the project company, SPMAR, which holds the concession for the construction and operation of the orbital motorway
serving the south east of Sao Paulo, totalling €37.1 million (€12.2 million in 2012), partially offset by the (expenses)/income accounted for as an increase in
financial (liabilities) assets, totalling -€14.0 million (-€29.3 million in 2012).
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Adjusted results of operations and financial position and reconciliation with
reported amounts

The following section shows adjusted gross operating profit (EBITDA), profit for the year, operating cash

flow and net debt. These amounts have been adjusted by stripping out the impact of financial items recognised
by the Group’s motorway operators in application of IFRIC 12 when, under its concession arrangement, an
operator has an unconditional right to receive contractually guaranteed cash payments for construction services
rendered, regardless of the extent to which the public uses the service. This right is accounted for in “financial
assets deriving from concession rights” in the statement of financial position.

The adjusted amounts, which are not IFRS compliant, are presented with the aim of enabling analysts and the
rating agencies to assess the Group’s results of operations and financial position using the basis of presentation

normally adopted by them.

In particular, the adjustments applied to the reported amounts regard:

a) an increase in revenue, corresponding to the portion of government grants collected in relation to
motorway maintenance and accounted for as a reduction in financial assets;

b) an increase in revenue to take account of the reduction (following collection) in financial assets deriving
from guaranteed minimum revenue;

¢) an increase in revenue, corresponding to the collected portion of government grants in relation to
investment in motorway infrastructure, which are accounted for as a reduction in financial assets and
were collected in full in previous years;

d) the reversal of financial income deriving from the discounting to present value of financial assets
deriving from guaranteed minimum revenue and government grants for motorway maintenance;

e) the elimination of financial assets recognised in application of IFRIC 12 (takeover rights, guaranteed
minimum revenue, other financial assets deriving from concession rights and government grants for

motorway maintenance) .
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Reconciliation of adjusted and reported amounts

2013 2012

EBITDA PROFIT @ OPERATING EBITDA PROFIT @ OPERATING
CASH FLOW CASH FLOW

Reported amounts @ 2,581.8 721.7 1,663.1 2,397.6 848.6 1,508.0

Increase in revenue for guaranteed

minimum revenue:

- Los Lagos 8.1 8.1 8.1 8.0 8.0 8.0

- Costanera Norte ® 35.8 35.8 35.8 27.2 27.2 27.2

- Litoral Central @ 8.6 8.6 8.6 5.8 5.8 5.8

- Nororiente © 12.9 12.9 12.9 10.2 10.2 10.2

Adjustment (before tax) 65.4 65.4 65.4 51.2 51.2 51.2

Grants for motorway maintenance:

- Los Lagos 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.3 13.3 13.3

Adjustment (before tax) 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.3 13.3 13.3

Grants for investment in motorway

infrastructure:

- Litoral Central ® 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0

Adjustment (before tax) 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0

Reversal of financial income deriving

from the discounting to present value of

financial assets deriving from concession

rights:

- Los Lagos 5.5 5.5 -5.9 5.9

- Costanera Norte © -25.0 -25.0 -19.5 -19.5

- Litoral Central @ 9.8 9.8 6.4 6.4

- Nororiente © -12.5 -12.5 9.9 9.9

- Ecomouv -24.3 -24.3 - -

Adjustment (before tax) -77.1 771 -41.7 -41.7

Reversal of financial income deriving

from the discounting to present value of

financial assets deriving from grants for

motorway maintenance:

- Los Lagos -8.4 -8.4 -9.0 9.0

Adjustment (before tax) -8.4 -8.4 9.0 -9.0

Deferred taxes 4.2 -3.0

Total adjustment 80.1 1.2 5.4 65.5 11.8 14.8

Adjusted amounts 2,661.9 720.5 1,657.7 2,463.1 860.4 1,522.8
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(€M) NET DEBT NET DEBT
AS AT 31.12.2013 AS AT 31.12.2012
Reported amount 10,769.1 10,109.4
Reversal of financial assets deriving from concession rights
Reversal of financial assets deriving from takeover rights:
- Autostrade Meridionali 390.4 357.8
Adjustment 390.4 357.8
Reversal of financial assets deriving from guarantee minimum revenue:
- Los Lagos 66.1 77.0
- Costanera Norte @ 304.4 354.2
- Litoral Central @ 100.0 113.3
- Nororiente © 160.9 181.3
Adjustment 631.4 725.8
Reversal of other financial assets deriving from concession rights:
- Ecomouv 652.1 340.6
- Costanera Norte © 35.9 -
Adjustment 688.0 340.6
Total reversal of financial assets deriving from concession rights 1,709.8 1,424.2
Reversal of financial assets deriving from grants for motorway maintenance:
- Los Lagos 99.7 117.3
Adjustment 99.7 117.3
Total adjustment 1,809.5 1,541.5
Adjusted amount 12,578.6 11,650.9

(1) Adjusted profit does not take into account amortisation and depreciation, after the related taxation, intangible assets deriving from concession rights which in

theory would have been recognised by the Group’s operators had they not adopted, in calculating reported profit, the financial model envisaged by IFRIC 12.
(2) Compared with the amount published in the Annual Report for 2012, the reported amount for profit for 2012 benefits from the impact of completion of the
identification of the fair values of the assets and liabilities of the Chilean and Brazilian companies consolidated in 2012.
(3) The Chilean companies, Costanera Norte, Litoral Central and Nororiente, were consolidated from 1 April 2012.
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Simulation of the accounting effects of amortisation of goodwill recognised in consolidated

assets

The consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013 reports goodwill of €4,382.8 million
recognised following the acquisition, in 20083, of the majority shareholding in the former Autostrade -
Concessioni e Costruzioni Autostrade SpA.

This amount, determined on the basis of Italian GAAP at that time applied by the Group, coincides with the
resulting net carrying amount as at I January 2004, having opted, on transition to IFRS, to not retrospectively
apply IFRS 3 - Business Combinations to acquisitions prior to I January 2004, in accordance with the
exemption provided for in IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of IFRS.

This goodwill has been allocated in full to the Autostrade per 1'Italia Cash Generating Unit (CGU).

From 2004, therefore, this goodwill is not systematically amortised, despite referring to activities with a
determinate life, but is tested for impairment at least annually, in accordance with the requirements of IAS

36 - Impairment of Assets, in order to verify its recoverability.

The impairment tests conducted until 2013 have, by estimating the related value in use, always confirmed the

recoverability of goodwill, the carrying amount of which has thus remained unchanged since I January 2004.

Taking into account the fact that Autostrade per I'Italia’s concession term expires on 31 December 2038, for
the sole purpose of showing the theoretical impact on the consolidated result for the year, and on consolidated
equity as at 31 December 2013, of the simulation of straight-line amortisation of goodwill from I January

2013 until the end of the concession term (a total of 26 years), the following reclassified consolidated income
statement and statement of financial position show amounts adjusted for amortisation of goodwill.

The goodwill accounted for in consolidated assets is not relevant for tax purposes and the simulation conducted

does not, therefore, result in deferred taxation.
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Reclassified consolidated income statement adjusted for goodwill amortisation

(€M) 2013 GOODWILL 2013
REPORTED AMOUNTS AMORTISATION ADJUSTED AMOUNTS
(POST-SIMULATION)
Toll revenue 3,539.3 3,539.3
Aviation revenue 34.2 34.2
Contract revenue 50.5 50.5
Other operating income 619.6 619.6
Total revenue 4,243.6 4,243.6
Cost of materials and external services -643.4 -643.4
Concession fees -427.9 -427.9
Staff costs -675.0 -675.0
Capitalised staff costs 84.5 84.5
Total net operating costs -1,661.8 -1,661.8
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 2,581.8 2,581.8
Amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses -696.8 -168.6 -865.4
and reversals of impairment losses
Provisions and other adjustments -69.2 -69.2
Operating profit (EBIT) 1,815.8 -168.6 1,647.2
Financial income from discounting to present value 85.5 85.5
of concession rights and government grants
Financial expenses from discounting of provisions -96.3 -96.3
for c.or)struction services required by contract and other
provisions
Other financial income/(expenses) -710.3 -710.3
Capitalised financial expenses 55.6 55.6
Share of profit/(loss) of associates and joint ventures 7.4 7.4
accounted for using the equity method
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,142.9 -168.6 974.3
Income tax (expense)/benefit -422.1 -422.1
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 720.8 -168.6 552.2
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations 0.9 0.9
Profit for the year 721.7 -168.6 553.1
(Profit)/Loss attributable to non-controlling interests -84.0 -84.0
(Profit) /Loss attributable to owners of the parent 637.7 -168.6 469.1
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Reclassified consolidated statement of financial position adjusted for goodwill amortisation

(€M)

Non-current non-financial assets

31.12.2013
REPORTED AMOUNTS

AMORTISATION

GOODWILL 2013
ADJUSTED AMOUNTS
(POST-SIMULATION)

Property, plant and equipment 233.0 233.0
Intangible assets 25,080.6 -168.6 24,912.0
Investments 159.1 159.1
Deferred tax assets 1,820.9 1,820.9
Other non-current assets 8.6 8.6
Total non-current non-financial assets (A) 27,302.2 -168.6 27,133.6
Working capital

Trading assets 1,332.0 1,332.0
Current tax assets 68.9 68.9
Other current assets 153.8 153.8
Non-financial assets held for sale or related to 16.5 16.5
discontinued operations

Current portion of provisions for construction services -433.6 -433.6
required by contract

Current provisions -463.8 -463.8
Trading liabilities -1,446.8 -1,446.8
Current tax liabilities -40.5 -40.5
Other current liabilities -506.9 -506.9
Total working capital (B) -1,320.4 -1,320.4
Invested capital less current liabilities (C = A + B) 25,981.8 -168.6 25,813.2
Non-current non-financial liabilities

Non-current portion of provisions for construction -3,728.4 -3,728.4
services required by contract

Non-current provisions -1,267.4 -1,267.4
Deferred tax liabilities -1,910.3 -1,910.3
Other non-current liabilities -93.6 -93.6
Total non-current non-financial liabilities (D) -6,999.7 -6,999.7
NET INVESTED CAPITAL (E = C + D) 18,982.1 -168.6 18,813.5
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(€M) 31.12.2013 GOODWILL 2013
REPORTED AMOUNTS AMORTISATION ADJUSTED AMOUNTS
(POST-SIMULATION)
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 6,484.6 -168.6 6,316.0
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 1,728.4 1,728.4
Total equity (F) 8,213.0 -168.6 8,044.4
Net debt
Non-current net debt
Non-current financial liabilities 14,456.4 14,456.4
Bond issues 10,191.1 10,191.1
Medium/long-term borrowings 3,728.8 3,728.8
Non-current derivative liabilities 495.7 495.7
Other non-current financial liabilities 40.8 40.8
Other non-current financial assets -2,328.7 -2,328.7
Non-current financial assets deriving from concession -1,296.7 -1,296.7
rights
Non-current financial assets deriving from government -247.5 -247.5
grants
Non-current term deposits convertible -332.8 -332.8
Non-current derivative assets 5.4 5.4
Other non-current financial assets -446.3 -446.3
Non-current net debt (G) 12,127.7 12,127.7
Current net debt
Current financial liabilities 3,858.3 3,858.3
Bank overdrafts 7.2 7.2
Short-term borrowings 3.0 3.0
Current derivative liabilities 0.1 0.1
Intercompany current account payables due to 13.5 13.5
unconsolidated Group companies
Current portion of medium/long-term borrowings 3,530.5 3,530.5
Other current financial liabilities 304.0 304.0
Cash and cash equivalents -4,414.2 -4,414.2
Cash in hand and at bank and post offices -2,435.8 -2,435.8
Cash equivalents -1,978.4 -1,978.4
Other current financial assets -802.7 -802.7
Current financial assets deriving from concession rights -413.1 -413.1
Current financial assets deriving from government grants -19.0 -19.0
Current term deposits convertible -191.7 -191.7
Current derivative assets 0.1 0.1
Current portion of medium/long-term financial assets -51.0 -51.0
Other current financial assets -126.2 -126.2
Financial assets held for sale or related to discontinued -1.6 -1.6
operations
Current net debt (H) -1,358.6 -1,358.6
Net debt (I = G + H) 10,769.1 10,769.1
NET DEBT AND EQUITY (L=F +1) 18,982.1 -168.6 18,813.5
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Pro forma consolidated income statement for 2013

This section presents pro forma accounts, designed to show the material effects of the merger on Atlantia’s
reclassified consolidated income statement as if the transaction had been consummated from I January 2013,
rather than from I December 2013, as more fully described in the section, “Merger of Gemina with and into

Atlantia”, to which reference should be made.

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS and as specified in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, providing the relevant details, the merger of Gemina with and into Atlantia involves, among other
things, (i) Atlantia’s acquisition of control of Gemina and the resulting line-by-line consolidation of the
income statements and statements of financial position of Gemina and its subsidiaries; and (i) recognition of
the assets and liabilities of Gemina in Atlantia’s consolidated financial statements at fair value (at the effective

date of the Merger).

For the purposes of a correct interpretation of the information provided in the pro forma consolidated income

statement, the following should be taken into account:

+  given that the pro forma financial statements present a hypothetical situation, had the merger actually
been consummated at the dates to which the pro forma information refers to, the historical data would not
necessarily have been identical to the pro forma data presented below;

- the pro forma adjustments shown represent material effects on the results of operations directly connected
to the merger;

+  the pro forma information has been prepared solely for the purposes of presenting the objectively measurable
effects of the merger and, therefore, does not take account of the potential effects resulting from changes in
management strategy and operational decisions resulting from implementation of the above strategy;

- the pro forma information does not reflect forward-looking information and is not intended in any way to
present the expected future results of operations of the Group following the merger and, therefore, should
not be used in this sense;

. in keeping with the approach described in the above note 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Contingent Value Rights issued by Atlantia and the connected put option rights have been accounted for as
an increase in the acquisition cost;

- at the date to which the pro forma consolidated income statement refers there are no relationships of
control or affiliation between the two companies participating in the merger, nor are they under common
control as defined by IFRS 3 - Business Combinations;

- the amounts calculated in preparing the “Pro forma adjustments” are consistent with the accounting
presentation of the transaction set out in detail in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, to which

reference should be made.

The accounting standards and policies used in preparing the pro forma reclassified consolidated income
statement and the corresponding adjustments are consistent and concurrent with those applied in preparation

of the Atlantia Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year to which the statement refers.
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In addition, allocation of the effects of pro forma adjustments to profit for the year attributable to non-

controlling interests has been calculated applying Gemina’s percentage interest in ADR (95.91%), given that no

material pro forma adjustments referring to other companies consolidated by the former Gemina group with

different non-controlling interests have been applied.

The pro forma reclassified consolidated income statement shown below presents:

pre-merger amounts for the Atlantia Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 in the column headed
“Atlantia” (thus excluding the consolidated amounts for 2013 presented after the contribution of the
former Gemina group companies);

in the column headed "Former Gemina group Companies” the total results of 2013 operations, net of
intercompany eliminations, of Aeroporti di Roma Group, Fiumicino Energia, Leonardo Energia and
Gemina SpA, up to merger effective date;

“Atlantia’s” and “Former Gemina group Companies’s aggregate consolidated results of operations for 2013
in the column headed “Pro forma combined amounts Atlantia”;

total pro forma adjustments, calculated on the basis of the hypotheses and assumptions described above, in
the column headed “Pro forma adjustments”;

the post-merger pro forma consolidated results of operations for 2013 in the column headed "Atlantia pro

forma”.

In accordance with IFRS g and as a result of the remeasurement at fair value of the net assets acquired from

Gemina, the following effects on the pro forma consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been identified:

application of the amortised cost method to the increased fair value of non-current financial liabilities of
the “Former Gemina group Companies” has resulted in a reduction of €2.0 million in financial expenses
and an increase of €0.6 million in tax expense; this adjustment has been calculated on the basis of the
carrying amount remeasured at fair value as at 31 December 2013, recognising the effects on the income
statement from I January 2013;

amortisation of €98.5 million of the goodwill represented by the difference between the estimated
acquisition cost and the net assets contributed by “Former Gemina group Companies”, allocated to ADR’s
concession rights, with the related release of deferred tax liabilities of €32.1 million; it should be noted
that for the purposes of this pro forma consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2013, it has been conventionally assumed that the period of amortisation for goodwill allocated to the
concession rights is 31.5 years (from I January 2013 to 30 June 2044, when ADR’s concession term

expires) .
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Pro forma reclassified consolidated income statement

(€M) ATLANTIA FORMER GEMINA COMBINED PRO FORMA ATLANTIA

2013 GROUP COMPANIES AMOUNTS ATLANTIA ADJUSTMENTS PRO FORMA 2013
2 PRO FORMA 2013

Toll revenue 3,539.3 - 3,539.3 3,539.3

Aviation revenue 457.8 457.8 457.8

Contract revenue 50.5 - 50.5 50.5

Other operating income 600.8 269.1 869.9 869.9

Total revenue 4,190.6 726.9 4,917.5 - 4,917.5

Cost of materials and external services -629.6 -161.4 -791.0 -791.0

Concession fees -425.8 -29.0 -454.8 -454.8

Staff costs -665.6 -114.3 -779.9 -779.9

Capitalised staff costs 84.5 - 84.5 84.5

Total net operating costs -1,636.5 -304.7 -1,941.2 - -1,941.2

Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 2,554.1 422.2 2,976.3 - 2,976.3

Amortisation, depreciation, impairment -682.4 -80.4 -762.8 -98.5 -861.3

losses and reversals of impairment

losses

Provisions and other adjustments -60.6 -114.2 -174.8 -174.8

Operating profit (EBIT) 1,811.1 227.6 2,038.7 -98.5 1,940.2

Financial income from discounting 85.5 85.5 85.5

to present value of concession rights

and government grants

Financial expenses from discounting -95.0 -15.1 -110.1 -110.1

of provisions for construction services

required by contract and other provisions

Other financial income/(expenses) -700.1 -56.8 -756.9 2.0 -754.9

Capitalised financial expenses 55.6 55.6 55.6

Share of profit/(loss) of associates and 7.4 7.4 7.4

joint ventures accounted for using the

equity method

Profit/(Loss) before tax from 1,149.7 155.7 1,305.4 -96.5 1,208.9

continuing operations

Income tax (expense)/benefit -424.2 -66.8 -491.0 31.5 -459.5

Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 725.5 88.9 814.4 -65.0 749.4

Profit/(Loss) from discontinued 0.9 - 0.9 0.9

operations

Profit for the year 726.4 88.9 815.3 -65.0 750.3

(Profit)/Loss attributable -84.1 4.4 -88.5 2.7 -85.8

to non-controlling interests

(Profit) /Loss attributable to owners 642.3 84.5 726.8 -62.4 664.5

of the parent
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Financial review for Atlantia SpA

Introduction

This financial review includes and analyses the Parent Company’s reclassified income statement, statement

of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of changes in net debt for the year
ended 31 December 2013, in which amounts are compared with those of the previous year. The review also
includes and analyses the reclassified statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, compared with
comparative amounts as at 31 December 2012.

These financial statements have been prepared under the international financial reporting standards (IFRS)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, endorsed by the European Commission, and in force
at 31 December 2013.

The accounting standards and policies used in preparing this document have not undergone material changes
with respect to those applied in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2012 (given
that no new accounting standards, new interpretations or revisions of standards already in force, having a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements, came into effect during 2013) and comply with the
requirements contained in the "Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting”.

However, it should be noted that, in accordance with the amendment to IAS 1 published by the IASB on 16
June 2011, and endorsed by the EU in June 2012, from 2013 components of the statement of comprehensive
income are to be classified by nature, grouping them into two categories: (i) items that, under certain
conditions, may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, as required by IFRS, and (ii) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

The statement of financial position and statement of cash flows for 2013 reflect the accounting effects of the
merger of Gemina SpA with and into Atlantia with effect from 1 December 2013, whilst the transaction has not
had a material impact on the Company’s income statement.

In accordance with IFRS 3, the transaction is classified as a business combination and Atlantia has been
identified as the acquirer. As a result, the merger has been accounted for using the “acquisition method”,
provisionally estimating, as permitted by the above standard, the fair value of the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed.

Further details of the transaction are provided in the section “Merger of Atlantia and Gemina”, whilst a

description of the related accounting entries is provided in note 4 to the separate financial statements.
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Results of operations

Reclassified income statement of Atlantia SpA

(€M) 2013 2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
Operating income 1.8 0.8 1.0
Total revenue 1.8 0.8 1.0
Cost of materials and external services -14.8 -7.3 -7.5
Staff costs 2.6 2.5 0.1
Total net operating costs -17.4 -9.8 -7.6
Gross operating loss (EBITDA) @ -15.6 -9.0 -6.6
Amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses and -0.4 -0.4 -
reversals of impairment losses

Operating loss (EBIT) @ -16.0 9.4 -6.6
Financial income/(expenses) 707.4 573.9 133.5
Impairment losses on investments -16.4 -23.4 7.0
Profit before tax from continuing operations 675.0 541.1 133.9
Income tax (expense)/benefit -8.6 -8.5 0.1
Profit from continuing operations 666.4 532.6 133.8
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations/assets held - - -
for sale

Profit for the year 666.4 532.6 133.8

(1) EBITDA is calculated by deducting all operating costs, with the exception of amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses on assets and reversals of
impairment losses from operating income.

(2) EBIT is calculated by deducting amortisation, depreciation, impairment losses on assets and reversals of impairment losses from EBITDA.

2013 2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
Basic earnings per share (€) 1.01 0.82 0.19
from:
continuing operations 1.01 0.82 0.19
discontinued operations - - -
Diluted earnings per share (€) 1.01 0.82 0.19
from:
continuing operations 1.01 0.82 0.19

discontinued operations - - R

“Operating income” in 2013 was €1.8 million, up €1.0 million compared to the figure for 2012 and primarily
consisting of rental income from subsidiaries.

The “Cost of materials and external services” totals €14.8 million, marking an increase of €7.5 million from
2012 (€7.9 million). This primarily reflects a rise in the cost of professional services and consultants’ fees
incurred in relation to the merger with Gemina.

“Staff costs” of €2.6 million primarily regard the pay and remuneration of Directors and are substantially in
line with the previous year (€2.5 million).

The “Gross operating loss” (negative EBITDA) amounts to €15.6 million (a loss of €9.0 million in 2012).

The “Profit before tax from continuing operations”, amounting to €675.0 million, is up €133.9 million,
essentially due to an increase of €133.5 million in “Financial income” compared with 2012.This reflects an
increase in dividends received from the subsidiary, Autostrade per I'Italia.

“Impairment losses on investments”, totalling €16.4 million, include the impairment of the carrying amount

of the investment in Alitalia - Compagnia Aerea Italiana, totalling €13.7 million (€23.4 million in 2012).
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“Income tax expense” of €8.6 million is in line with 2012.
“Profit for the year”, totalling €666.4 million, is up to €133.8 million on 2012 (€532.6 million).
Statement of comprehensive income of Atlantia SpA
€M) 2013 2012
Profit for the period (A) 666.4 532.6
Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges -42.6 -10.3
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period reclassifiable to profit or loss, -42.6 -10.3
after related taxation (B)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period not reclassifiable to profit - -
or loss, after related taxation (C)
Reclassifications of other components of comprehensive income to profit or loss (D) -0.1 -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, after related taxation and -42.7 -10.3
reclassifications to profit or loss (E=B + C + D)
Comprehensive income for the year (A + E) 623.7 522.3
The statement of comprehensive income reports comprehensive income of €623.7 million (€522.3 million
in 2012), after the negative impact of fair value losses on cash flow hedges, after the related taxation (aloss of
€4.2.6 million).
The measurement of cash flow hedges in 2012 resulted in fair value losses of €10.3 million, after the related
taxation.
Financial position
“Non-current non-financial assets” of €8,813.8 million are up to €2,787.7 million from the figure for
31 December 2012 (€6,026.1 million).
These assets consist entirely of “Investments” amounting to €8,804..8 million after an increase of €2,786.7
million on the figure for 31 December 2012 (€6,018.1 million).This essentially reflects provisional
recognition, in accordance with the relevant accounting standard, of the value of the investment in Aeroporti
di Roma following the above merger with Gemina.
“Working capital” is a negative €8.8 million, marking a change of €2.3 million compared with the figure
for 31 December 2012 (a negative €6.5 million). This is essentially due to the contribution from the merged
company, Gemina, relating primarily to the amount due to Aeroporti di Roma as a result of the indemnity
provided in relation to this company’s dispute with the tax authorities.
“Non-current non-financial liabilities” amount to €31.1 million (€39.6 million as at 3T December 2012)
and almost entirely regard deferred tax liabilities (after offsetting against deferred tax assets), essentially
recognised as a result of fair value gains on cash flow hedges. The change of €8.5 million compared with
31 December 2012 essentially reflects the tax effect of movements in the fair value of the above derivative
instruments (€21.1 million), partially offset by the recognition of deferred tax liabilities accounted for as a
result of the irrelevance for tax purposes of fair value measurement of the investment in Aeroporti di Roma as
part of the merger transaction (a reduction of €12.6 million).
“Net invested capital” of €8,773.9 million is up €2,793.9 million on the figure for 31 December 2012
(€5,980.0 million).
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Reclassified statement of financial position of Atlantia SpA
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(€M) 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
Non-current non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment 8.4 7.8 0.6
Intangible assets 0.2 0.2 0.0
Investments 8,804.8 6,018.1 2,786.7
Other non-current assets 0.4 - 0.4
Total non-current non-financial assets (A) 8,813.8 6,026.1 2,787.7
Working capital

Trading assets 2.5 1.5 1.0
Current tax assets 41.7 92.0 -50.3
Other current assets 3.5 0.7 2.8
Current provisions 2.6 - 2.6
Trading liabilities -10.8 -7.6 3.2
Current tax liabilities -27.0 -90.2 63.2
Other current liabilities -16.1 2.9 -13.2
Total working capital (B) -8.8 -6.5 2.3
Invested capital less current liabilities (C = A + B) 8,805.0 6,019.6 2,785.4
Non-current non-financial liabilities

Non-current provisions -0.5 -0.3 -0.2
Net deferred tax liabilities -30.4 -39.3 8.9
Other non-current liabilities 0.2 - 0.2
Total non-current non-financial liabilities (D) -31.1 -39.6 8.5
NET CAPITAL EMPLOYED (E = C + D) 8,773.9 5,980.0 2,793.9
Equity (F) 9,329.1 6,536.6 2,792.5
Net debt

Non-current net debt

Non-current financial liabilities 8,640.5 9,908.7 -1,268.2
Non-current derivative liabilities 290.4 239.0 51.4
Bond issues 8,350.1 9,669.7 -1,319.6
Non-current financial assets -8,764.0 -10,086.9 1,322.9
Non-current derivative assets -184.5 -245.3 60.8
Other non-current financial assets -8,579.5 -9,841.6 1,262.1
Non-current net debt (G) -123.5 -178.2 54.7
Current net debt

Current financial liabilities 2,678.2 266.7 2,411.5
Current portion of medium/long-term borrowings 2,380.3 266.6 2,113.7
Other current financial liabilities 297.9 0.1 297.8
Cash and cash equivalents -706.0 -362.5 -343.5
Current financial assets -2,403.9 -282.6 -2,121.3
Current portion of medium/long-term financial assets -2,394.8 277.2 -2,117.6
Other current financial assets 9.1 5.4 3.7
Current net debt (H) -431.7 -378.4 -53.3
Net debt (1 = G + H) -555.2 -556.6 1.4
NET DEBT AND EQUITY (L=F +1) 8,773.9 5,980.0 2,793.9
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“Equity” totals €9,329.I million and is up €2,792.5 million compared with 31 December 2012 (€6,536.6

million), essentially due to:

a) the merger reserve of €2,538.2 million deriving from the merger with Gemina;

b) the capital increase of €163.9 million that took place as part of the above transaction;

¢) comprehensive income for 2013, totalling €623.7 million;

d) payment of the final dividend for 2012, totalling €253.6 million, and approval of the interim dividend for
2013, paid in January 2014, totalling €288.6 million.

Statement of changes in equity of Atlantia SpA

(€M) ISSUED CAPITAL  OTHER RESERVES AND TREASURY SHARES PROFIT/(LOSS) TOTAL EQUITY
RETAINED EARNINGS FOR YEAR

Balance as at 31 December 2011 630.3 5,803.4 -215.6 265.2 6,483.3

Total comprehensive income - -10.3 532.6 522.3

Owner transactions and other changes

Final dividend approved - - - -241.5 -241.5

Appropriation of result for previous year - 23.7 - -23.7

Bonus issue 31.5 -31.5 - -

Interim dividend - - - -230.2 -230.2

Share-based incentive plans - 2.7 - - 2.7

Balance as at 31 December 2012 661.8 5,788.0 -215.6 302.4 6,536.6

Total comprehensive income - -42.7 - 666.4 623.7

Owner transactions and other changes

Final dividend approved - - - -253.6 -253.6

Appropriation of result for previous year - 48.8 - -48.8 -

Bonus issue 163.9 - - - 163.9

Merger reserve - 2,538.2 - - 2,5638.2

Interim dividend - - - -288.6 -288.6

Share-based incentive plans

Valuation - 3.6 - - 3.6

Exercise of options - -1.9 7.2 - 5.3

Balance as at 31 December 2013 825.7 8,334.0 -208.4 377.8 9,329.1

Net funds amount to €555.2 million as at 31 December 2013, in line with the figure as at 31 December 2012
(€556.6 million), with the non-current portion totalling €123.5 million (€178.2 million as at 3T December
2012) and the current portion €431.7 million (€378.4 million as at 31 December 2012).

The Company subscribed a portion of the convertible bonds (€13.3 million) approved by the Extraordinary
General Meeting of Alitalia - Compagnia Aerea Italiana on 22 February 2013. The bonds pay coupon interest
of 8% and mature on 31 December 2015.

In addition, on 29 October 2013 and 17 May 2013 the Company issued new bonds with par values of €750
million (maturing in 2021 and paying a coupon of 2.875%) and €75 million (maturing in 2033 and paying a
coupon of 3.75%). At the same time medium/long-term loans of the same amounts and with the same terms to
maturity were granted to the subsidiary, Autostrade per I'Italia.

Finally, in view of the approaching maturity, in June 2014, of bond issued with a par value of €2,094.2 million
and of the matching loan to Autostrade per I'Italia, these financial liabilities and assets have been reclassified to

current liabilities and assets.
The Company’s ordinary operating and financial activities expose it to market risks, primarily

regarding interest rate and currency risks linked to the financial assets acquired and the financial
liabilities assumed.
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Atlantia’s financial risk management strategy is consistent with the business goals set by the Company’s Board
of Directors in the various strategic plans that have been approved over time. The strategy aims to both manage
and control such risks, wherever possible by mitigating interest rate and currency risks and minimising
borrowing costs, as defined in the Financial Policy approved by the Board of Directors.

The medium/long-term loans provided to the subsidiary, Autostrade per I'Italia, are granted on the same terms
as the Company’s borrowings in the market, adding a margin to take into account operating costs, including
those incurred for hedges using derivative financial instruments, entered into to mitigate the exposure to cash
flow risk of the underlying instruments as a result of movements in interest and exchange rates. Partly based on
the positive outcome of tests of effectiveness, these derivatives are classified as cash flow hedges. As a result, any
change in the cash flows generated by the underlying transaction is offset by a matching change in the cash flows
deriving from the derivative instrument.

The fair value of these instruments is based on expected cash flows that are discounted at rates derived from

the market yield curve at the measurement date and the curve for the listed Credit Default Swaps of the
Company and its counterparty banks. This is done to include the “non-performance risk” provided for in

the new international accounting standard, IFRS 13. Adoption of IFRS 13 has not had material effects on

the Company’s net funds. Amounts in currencies other than the euro are translated at closing exchange

rates provided by the European Central Bank. All hedging derivatives fall within the category of financial
instruments measured at fair value.

The residual weighted average term to maturity of the Company’s interest bearing debt is approximately 5 years
and 6 months as at 31 December 2013. 100% of the Company’s debt is fixed rate.

8% of the Company’s medium/long-term debt is denominated in currencies other than the euro. Taking
account of foreign exchange hedges, the percentage of foreign currency debt exposed to currency risk on
translation into euros is zero.

The average cost of medium/long-term borrowings in 2013 was approximately 4.8%.

Cash flow

Cash flows in 2013 resulted in a reduction in net funds of €1.4 million, compared with an increase of €78.0

million in 2012.

Cash generated from operating activities amounts to €684..3 million, marking an increase of €118.5 million from

2012 (€565.8 million). This primarily reflects the increase in dividends received from Autostrade per I'Italia.

Cash used for investment in non-financial assets amounts to €83.2 million and primarily reflects:

a) net debt contributed by Gemina as a result of the merger (€4.3.6 million);

b) the capital contribution (€26.0 million) relating to the investment in Alitalia - Compagnia Aerea Italiana;
¢) the issue of put option rights (€12.0 million) for the Contingent Value Rights on the Company’s shares as

part of the above merger.
Cash used for investing activities in 2012 amounted to €0.8 million.

The cash outflow resulting from changes in equity amounts to €536.9 million. This essentially reflects the
payment to shareholders of the dividend for the previous year (an outflow of €253.6 million) and approval of
the interim dividend for 2013, paid in January 2014 (totalling €288.6 million). The cash outflow resulting
from changes in equity in 2012 amounted to €471.7 million and related entirely to dividends approved during
the year.

In 2013 net funds were reduced by €63.8 million, resulting from the change in the fair value of financial
instruments recognised in comprehensive income (in 2012, on the other hand, net funds were reduced by

€15.3 million).
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(€M) 2013 2013
Profit for the year 666.4 532.6
Amortisation and depreciation 0.4 0.4
Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment losses) on non-current financial assets 16.5 23.4
and including investments accounted for at cost or fair

(Gain)/Loss on sale of non-current assets - 0.8
Net change in deferred tax (assets)/liabilities 3.5 -
Other non-cash items 1.8 0.2
Change in working capital -0.9 2.9
Other changes in non-financial assets and liabilities 3.4 5.5
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (A) @ 684.3 565.8
Purchases of property, plant and equipment -1.0 -0.7
Purchases of investments, net of unpaid called-up issued capital -38.6 0.1
Net debt contributed by Gemina SpA -43.6 -
Net cash from/(used in) investment in non-financial assets (B) @ -83.2 -0.8
Proceeds from transfer of treasury shares due to exercise of rights 5.3 -
under share-based incentive plans

Dividends approved -542.2 4717
Net equity cash outflows (C) ¥ -536.9 -471.7
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 64.2 93.3
Change in fair value of financial instruments recognised in comprehensive -63.8 -15.3
income (D) ©®

Financial income/(expenses) accounted for as an increase in financial assets/ -1.8 -
(liabilities) (E)

Decrease/(Increase) in net debt for year (A + B + C + D + E) 1.4 78.0
Net debt at beginning of year 556.6 478.6
Net debt at end of year 555.2 556.6

(1) This statement differs from the statement of cash flows insofar as it presents the impact of cash flows generated or used during the period on net debt, as

defined above, rather than on net cash and cash equivalents.

(2) This shows, within the context of the change in working capital presented in Atlantia’s statement of cash flows, the change in operating capital, consisting of

trade-related items directly linked to the ordinary activities of the business concerned.
(3) This does not include changes in current and non-current financial assets.

(4) This differs from cash flows from (for) financing activities in Atlantia’s statement of cash flows, as it does not include changes in current and non-current
financial liabilities and shows dividends approved during the reporting period, rather than dividends effectively paid in the reporting period.

(5) The change in the fair value of financial instruments recognised in comprehensive income is presented in Atlantia’s statement of changes in net debt, whilst it
is not presented in the statement of cash flows, as it does not impact on net cash.
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Group financial and operating review

Key performance indicators by operating segment

Following the above merger of Gemina with and into Atlantia and in keeping with the Group’s operational
restructuring, with effect from this Annual Report for 2013 information is to be provided about the Group’s
identified operating segments. These operating segments are consistent with the information provided

to Atlantia’s Board of Directors which, in application of IFRS 8 - Operating Segments, represents the
Group’s chief operating decision maker, taking decisions regarding the allocation of resources and assessing
performance. In particular, the Board of Directors assesses the performance of the business both in terms of
geographical area and in terms of segment.

Information for the identified segments for 2012 has also been determined for comparative purposes.

Details of the Group’s operating segments are as follows:

a) Italian motorways: this includes the Italian motorway operators (Autostrade per I'ltalia, Autostrade
Meridionali, Tangenziale di Napoli, Societa Italiana per Azioni per il Traforo del Monte Bianco and
Raccordo Autostradale Valle d’Aosta), whose core business consists on the management, maintenance,
construction and widening of the related motorways operated under concession, as described in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, this segment also includes the companies that provide
support for the motorway business Italy and the Italian holding company, Autostrade dell’Atlantico, which
holds investments in South America;

b) Italian airports: this essentially includes the subsidiary, Aeroporti di Roma, which holds the concession to
operate and develop the airports of Rome Fiumicino and Rome Ciampino, in addition to the companies
responsible for supporting and developing the airports business;

c) overseas motorways: this operating segment includes the holders of concessions in Chile, Poland and
Brazil, and the companies that provide operational support for these overseas activities and the related
foreign-registered holding companies;

d) technology: this segment includes the subsidiaries that produce and operate free-flow tolling systems,
traffic and transport management systems, public information and electronic payment systems. The most
important companies are Telepass, Autostrade Tech and Ecomouv;

e) design and construction: this segment includes the companies whose business is the design, construction
and maintenance of road infrastructure, essentially referring to Pavimental and Spea;

f) Atlantia: this segment regards amounts attributable to the Parent Company, which operates as a holding
company for its subsidiaries and associates whose business is the construction and operation of motorways,
airports and transport infrastructure, parking areas and intermodal systems, or who engage in activities

related to the management of motorway or airport traffic.
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The key performance indicators reviewed by the Board of Directors in order to assess the performance of each
identified operating segment are shown below. Further details of operating segment information are provided

in note I0.I to the consolidated financial statements.

Atlantia Group

31.12.2013
ITALIAN ITALIAN OVERSEAS TECHNOLOGY DESIGN ATLANTIA ELIMINATIONS

TOTAL
MOTORWAYS AIRPORTS MOTORWAYS AND AND  CONSOLIDATED
CONSTRUCTION ADJUSTMENTS AMOUNTS

Reported amounts

External revenue 3,386.8 53.0 557.1 201.4 43.8 0.9 0.6 4,243.6
Intersegment revenue 36.3 - 0.3 31.4 406.0 0.9 -474.9 -
Total revenue 3,423.1 53.0 557.4 232.8 449.8 1.8 -474.3 4,243.6
EBITDA 2,041.2 27.7 409.5 73.9 42.8 -15.6 2.3 2,581.8
Operating cash flow 1,237.2 17.3 309.1 78.9 30.8 -10.2 - 1,663.1
Capital expenditure 840.9 12.9 77.5 272.2 9.5 1.0 32.9 1,246.9

Adjusted amounts @
Adjusted EBITDA 2,041.2 27.7 489.6 73.9 42.8 -15.6 2.3 2,661.9
Adjusted operating cash flow 1,237.2 17.3 328.0 54.6 30.8 -10.2 - 1,657.7

31.12.2012
ITALIAN ITALIAN OVERSEAS TECHNOLOGY DESIGN ATLANTIA ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

MOTORWAYS AIRPORTS @ MOTORWAYS AND AND  CONSOLIDATED
CONSTRUCTION ADJUSTMENTS AMOUNTS

Reported amounts

External revenue 3,382.6 n.a. 423.3 200.0 29.1 0.1 -0.7 4,034.4
Intersegment revenue 47.3 n.a. - 38.0 602.7 - -688.0 -
Total revenue 3,429.9 n.a. 423.3 238.0 631.8 0.1 -688.7 4,034.4
EBITDA 1,989.8 n.a. 276.0 96.1 44.7 9.0 - 2,397.6
Operating cash flow 1,233.3 n.a. 176.0 73.5 35.0 9.8 - 1,508.0
Capital expenditure 1,250.3 n.a. 51.3 370.3 9.9 0.7 -52.2 1,630.3

Adjusted amounts @
Adjusted EBITDA 1,989.8 n.a. 341.5 96.1 44.7 9.0 - 2,463.1
Adjusted operating cash flow 1,233.2 n.a. 190.8 73.5 35.0 9.8 - 1,522.7

(1) Following the merger of Gemina SpA with and into Atlantia SpA, the companies belonging to the “Italian airports” segment were consolidated from
1 December 2013.

(2) Adjusted amounts are presented on the basis normally adopted by financial analysts and the rating agencies. The adjustments made regard the
disapplication of the financial model introduced by IFRIC 12.
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Key performance indicators for the Group’s principal

subsidiaries ®

REVENUE EBITDA

2012 INCREASE/DECREASE 2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Italian motorways

Autostrade per I'ltalia 3,189.9 3,180.4 9.5 0.3% 1,931.5 1,879.4 52.1 2.8%
Societa Italiana per il Traforo del Monte 55.4 56.3 -0.9 -1.6% 35.7 37.2 -1.5 -4.0%
Bianco

Raccordo Autostradale Valle d'Aosta 17.3 16.3 1.0 6.1% 5.3 3.8 1.5 39.5%
Tangenziale di Napoli 69.5 70.1 -0.6 -0.9% 24.2 22.3 1.9 8.5%
Autostrade Meridionali 75.1 88.2 -13.1 -14.9% 27.4 31.4 -4.0 12.7%
AD Moving 9.0 9.5 0.5 -5.3% 0.5 0.9 -0.4 -44.4%
TowerCo 21.5 19.6 1.9 9.7% 12.7 11.6 1.1 9.5%

Overseas motorways

Stalexport Autostrady 50.4 45.0 5.4 12.0% 38.9 33.2 5.7 17.2%
Triangulo do Sol 137.3 139.5 2.2 -1.6% 102.4 101.7 0.7 0.7%
Rodovias das Colinas ® 149.3 78.9 n.s. n.s. 112.0 49.3 n.s. n.s.
Rodovia MG 050 ® (Nascentes das Gerais) 31.1 16.7 n.s. n.s. 20.7 11.6 n.s. n.s.
Sociedad Concesionaria de Los Lagos 20.5 19.6 0.9 4.6% 13.5 9.3 4.2 45.2%
Costanera Norte © 81.1 56.9 n.s. n.s. 59.7 41.1 n.s. n.s.
Autopista Nororiente © 4.2 3.2 n.s. n.s. 0.7 0.1 n.s. n.s.
Vespucio Sur © 71.0 52.9 n.s. n.s. 60.0 42.6 n.s. n.s.
Litoral Central © 2.5 1.7 n.s. n.s. -0.2 -0.3 n.s. n.s.
AMB © 1.4 0.9 n.s. n.s. 0.2 0.1 n.s. n.s.

Design and Construction
Pavimental 356.7 511.4 -154.7 -30.3% 17.3 2.7 14.6 n.a.
Spea Ingegneria Europea 89.7 116.7 -27.0 -23.1% 25.1 40.8 -15.7 -38.5%

Italian airports

Gruppo Aeroporti di Roma @ 52.6 n.a. n.a. n.a. 27.1 n.a. n.a. n.a.
Fiumicino Energia © 0.8 n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.5 n.a. n.a. n.a.
Leonardo Energia @ 2.3 n.a. n.a. n.a. - n.a. n.a. n.a.
Technology

Infoblu 5.1 5.2 0.1 -1.9% 1.3 1.2 0.1 8.3%
Telepass 141.1 136.1 5.0 3.7% 85.6 79.9 5.7 7.1%
Newpass 0.5 0.7 0.2 -28.6% 0.1 0.3 -0.2 -66.7%
Autostrade Tech 62.4 77.2 -14.8 -19.1% 6.8 23.9 -17.1 -71.5%
Ecomouv 0.4 0.4 - - - - - n.a.
ETC 44.7 46.1 1.4 -3.0% 4.4 3.4 -1.0 -29.4%

(a) Figures calculated under IFRS and, in particular, in compliance with the standards and policies adopted by Atlantia, and extracted from specific reporting
packages prepared by each subsidiary for the purpose of preparing the Atlantia Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(b) Amounts refer solely to the period of consolidation: 30 June-31 December 2012.

(c) Amounts refer solely to the period of consolidation: 1 April-31 December 2012.

(d) Amounts refer solely to the period of consolidation: 1 December 2013-31 December 2013.
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NET DEBT

INCREASE/DECREASE INCREASE/DECREASE 2012 INCREASE/DECREASE

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

1,440.6 1,377.4 63.2 4.6% 794.6 1,194.5 -399.9 -33.5% -10,650.1 -10,801.7 151.6 -1.4%
21.2 25.9 4.7 -18.1% 1.3 3.1 -1.8 -58.1% 85.3 73.4 11.9 16.2%
5.9 9.9 4.0 -40.4% 3.0 2.4 0.6 25.0% 81.5 73.3 8.2 11.2%
14.5 10.4 4.1 39.4% 6.3 5.8 0.5 8.6% -39.6 -59.1 19.5 -33.0%
16.5 8.3 8.2 98.8% 32.8 35.3 2.5 -7.1% 138.2 131.9 6.3 4.8%
0.2 0.7 -0.5 -71.4% 0.1 0.3 -0.2 -66.7% -0.8 1.1 0.3 -27.3%
8.8 7.9 0.9 11.4% 2.5 2.1 0.4 19.0% 10.2 10.0 0.2 2.0%
21.8 10.3 11.5 n.a. 6.9 19.4 -12.5 -64.4% 11.0 -11.6 22.6 n.a.
57.8 47.5 10.3 21.7% 2.9 6.9 -4.0 -58.0% 15.7 3.1 12.6 n.a.
82.8 21.8 n.s. n.s. 7.1 10.0 2.9 n.a. -20.5 -65.6 n.s. n.s.
12.6 5.9 n.s. n.s. 20.3 11.7 8.6 73.5% -36.1 -34.4 n.s. n.s.
9.2 8.4 0.8 9.5% 0.1 0.2 0.1 -50.0% 213.5 214.9 1.4 -0.7%
41.6 26.0 n.s. n.s. 38.4 0.2 38.2 n.a. 45.4 -13.1 n.s. n.s.
-0.7 -0.5 n.s. n.s. - - n.a. 16.0 11.0 n.s. n.s.
42.5 22.5 n.s. n.s. - 0.8 -0.8 n.a. -113.9 -142.7 n.s. n.s.
-0.9 -0.6 n.s. n.s. - - n.a. 87.9 92.5 n.s. n.s.
0.2 0.1 n.s. n.s. 0.2 0.6 0.4 -66.7% 3.3 2.2 n.s. n.s.
4.2 9.8 14.0 n.a. 6.3 7.7 1.4 -18.2% -145.0 -41.5 -103.5 n.a.
22.0 38.3 -16.3 -42.6% 2.9 2.0 0.9 45.0% -20.4 0.8 -21.2 n.a.
4.4 n.a. n.a. n.a. 12.6 n.a. n.a. n.a. 795.7 n.a. n.a. n.a.
0.4 n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.3 n.a. n.a. n.a. 9.4 n.a. n.a. n.a.
0.0 n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.0 n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.1 n.a. n.a. n.a.
0.5 0.6 -0.1 -16.7% 0.5 0.4 0.1 25.0% 1.8 2.6 -0.8 -30.8%
70.8 62.0 8.8 14.2% 13.4 13.3 0.1 0.8% -268.8 -198.8 -70.0 35.2%
0.1 0.2 0.1 -50.0% - - n.a. 1.9 1.8 0.1 5.6%
3.3 21.0 7.7 -84.3% 3.0 2.3 0.7 30.4% -10.2 14.5 24.7 n.a.
-26.0 n.a. n.a. 296.6 337.7 41.1 -12.2% 92.7 59.7 33.0 55.3%
-26.1 -17.4 -8.7 50.0% 6.0 9.0 -3.0 -33.3% -34.8 -25.1 9.7 38.6%
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Italian motorways Sy

Toll revenue for 2013 is up €20.4 million, primarily reflecting a combination of the application of toll
increases (€87.2 million), a contraction in traffic using the motorway network (down 1.6%, accounting for a
reduction of €45.7 million, including the impact of the different traffic mix), the reduction in toll increases
matching the increased concession fees payable by Italian operators (down €6.4 million), reduced toll revenue
from Autostrade Meridionali (down €13.1 million) due to the release in 2012 of the accumulated “X variable”
toll component, no longer recognised from 2013 following expiry of the concession term, and income
deriving from the cancellation, from 2012, of unused prepaid Viacard cards issued over 10 years previously by
Autostrade per I'ltalia (a reduction of €5.1 million).

Other operating income is down €27.8 million on 2012, reflecting completion of the supply of services
forming part of the "Design & Build” phase of the Eco-Taxe project in France, a reduction in payouts from
insurance companies and reduced revenue from Port Mobility, which was sold at the end of 2012.

Maintenance costs are down €23.7 million, in the case of Autostrade per 1'Italia primarily due to a reduction in
winter operations and an increase in insourcing, partially offset by increased work on infrastructure, and in the
case of Autostrade Meridionali primarily due to an increase in work carried out in 2012 in view of the planned
handover of infrastructure operated under concession.

The other costs of materials and external services are down €20.6 million compared with 2012, primarily
reflecting the reduced costs incurred for the “Design & Build” phase of the Eco-Taxe project in France and
operating efficiencies, in addition to the reduction in costs attributable to Port Mobility, which was sold at the
end of 2012. These reductions were partially offset by the greater costs incurred with regard to settlements with

service area sub- operators .

After stripping out Port Mobility, which was sold in 2012, staff costs (before deducting capitalised expenses) are

down €6.9 million (1.4%) on 2012, reflecting:

a) adecrease of 59 (0.8%) in the average workforce;

b) an increase in the average unit cost (up 1.9%), primarily due to contract renewals for the periods 2010-
2012 and 2013-2015, in part offset by a reduction in the use of variable staff;

c) a 2.5% reduction in other staff costs, primarﬂy due to a decrease in charges for early retirement incentives

and an increase in reimbursements for seconded personnel.

EBITDA for the Italian motorways segment in 2013 amounts to €2,041.2 million, up €5I.4 million (2.6%)
from 2012 (€1,989.8 million).

Traffic

The number of kilometres travelled on the Group’s Italian network in 2013 is down 1.6% overall compared
with 2012. Vehicles with 2 axles (cars and vans, representing 87.6% of the total) are down 1.5%, whilst vehicles

(1) The following analysis is based on aggregate amounts that do not take into account the eliminations of any transactions between companies belonging to the
same segment.
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with 3 or more axles (12.4% of the total) are down 2.4%. The economic downturn continued to weigh heavily
on traffic trends, though the figures for the second half show a slowdown in the decline with respect to the first
six months of the year.

In addition, compared with the same period of the previous year, the figures for 2013 reflect

the negative impact of February being one day shorter (2012 was a leap year), which accounts for
approximately 0.3 percentage points of the drop registered during the year. These factors were partially
offset by the fact that traffic during 2013 was not affected by the unfavourable events witnessed during
the previous year (a lorry drivers’ strike and exceptional snowfall), which weighed on the performance
for the first quarter of 2012.

After adjusting for the above calendar-related factor, traffic on the Group’s Italian network during 2013 is
down 1.3%, with vehicles with 2 axles down 1.2% and those with 3 or more axles down 2.1%.

The decline in traffic on Autostrade per I'Italia’s network was slightly above average in 2013, with a reduction of
1.7% in overall traffic (vehicles with 2 axles down 1.6% and those with 3 or more axles down 2.4%).

The Group’s other Italian motorway operators registered contrasting performances: Raccordo Autostradale
Valle d’Aosta performed worst, with a decline of 4.6%, whilst Tangenziale di Napoli’s performance was in
line with the average for the Group (down 1.7%). Traforo del Monte Bianco reversed this trend, with growth
of 0.7% from 2012 due to a significant increase in vehicles with 2 axles, which offset a reduction in the “3

or more axles” component. Finally, the Naples-Salerno saw an increase of 2.2%, partly due to closure for

approximately a month of the Statale 18, an alternative route between Vietri sul Mare and Salerno, following

a landslide.

Traffic on the network operated under concession in Italy in 2013

MOTORWAY VEHICLES X KM (MILLIONS)

VEHICLES WITH VEHICLES TOTAL % INCREASE/

2 AXLES WITH 3+ VEHICLES DECREASE ON 2012
AXLES

Autostrade per I'ltalia 38,134.7 5,580.2 43,714.8 1.7 41,956
Autostrade Meridionali 1,420.6 29.6 1,450.2 2.2 76,997
Tangenziale di Napoli 849.8 76.9 926.7 1.7 125,693
Societa Italiana per il Traforo del Monte 7.5 3.1 10.6 0.7 5,011
Bianco
Raccordo Autostradale Valle d'Aosta 85.5 18.2 103.7 -4.6 8,780
Total italian operators 40,498.1 5,708.0 46,206.0 -1.6 42,702

(a) ATVD - Average theoretical vehicles per day, equal to number of kilometres travelled/journey length/number of days in the year.

Monthly traffic trends on the network operated under concession in Italy in 2013

(millions of vehicles x km)
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Toll increases

The following annual toll increases were introduced by Autostrade per I'Italia and the Group’s Italian motorway
operators from I January 2013. The increases were calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of

the respective concession arrangements in force:

ITALIAN MOTORWAY OPERATORS TOLL INCREASE

Autostrade per I'ltalia @ 3.54%
Raccordo Autostradale Valle d’Aosta @ 14.44%
Tangenziale di Napoli @ 3.59%

Autostrade Meridionali © R

Societa Italiana Traforo del Monte Bianco “ 5.01%

(1) The toll increases applied by Autostrade per I'ltalia consist of a 1.23% increase designed to provide a return on additional capital expenditure via the X tariff
component and a 2.24% increase equivalent to 70% of the consumer price inflation rate (as measured by ISTAT) in the period from 1 July 2011 to 30 June
2012.

Between 1 January 2013 and 11 April 2013 the toll increase applied was 3.47% following postponement of the increase based on the K component.
Subsequently, on 9 April 2013 the Minister of Infrastructure and Transport, in agreement with the Minister of the Economy, issued a decree authorising the
toll increase of 0.07% based on the K component providing a return on new investment required by the Single Concession Arrangement of 2007 and relating
to noise abatement initiatives. The toll increase that should have been applied in the period from 1 January to 11 April 2013 was recovered via the toll
increase for 2014.

(2) The operators, Raccordo Autostradale Valle d’Aosta and Tangenziale di Napoli, apply a tariff formula that takes into account the target inflation rate, a
rebalancing component and a return on investment, in addition to quality.

(3) Autostrade Meridionali was not authorised to apply any toll increase following expiry of its concession on 31 December 2012.

(4) Traforo del Monte Bianco, which operates under a different concession regime based on bilateral agreements between lItaly and France, applied a total
increase of 5.01% from 1 January 2013, in accordance with the resolutions approved by the Intergovernmental Committee for the Mont Blanc Tunnel on
20 October and 25 November 2011. This increase is based on the combination of two elements:

2.61% representing the average inflation rate in France and ltaly for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2012;
2.40% in accordance with the joint declaration issued by the Italian and French governments on 3 December 2012, with use of the proceeds still to be
decided on by the two governments.

Inflation and tolls applicable to Autostrade per I'Italia: trend 2000-2013 @
(base index 2000 = 100)
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Average tolls for vehicles in Europe ® VAT included

(year 2012 € cents per km)
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Autostrade per I'ltalia Italy & Portugal (APCAP) France @ (ASFA) Spain (ASETA) UK (M6 Toll)

(*) Source: APCAP; ASETA; ASFA; ASECAP; Toll Collect; Asfinag; Austrian tolls refer to 1 January.2011.
(1) Figures from Autostrade per I'ltalia are based on data from operators and AISCAT.
(2) Estimate.

Average tolls for heavy vehicles in Europe ® VAT included

(year 2012 in € cents per km)
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Autostrade per I'ltalia  Portugal (APCAP) Italy Spain (ASETA) Germany © France @ (ASFA) UK (M6 Toll) Austria ® (Asfinag)
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(*) Source: APCAP; ASETA; ASFA; ASECAP; Toll Collect; Asfinag.

(1) Figures from Autostrade per I'ltalia are based on data from operators and AISCAT.

(2) Estimate.

(3) The tolls in Austria and Germany are differentiated by vehicle emission class: those shown are the highest.

Capital expenditure

Autostrade per I'Italia and the other Italian motorway operators are in the process of implementing a

programme of investment in major infrastructure projects worth approximately €15 billion. The purpose

of these investments is to increase the capacity of the existing motorway network on the country’s principal

arteries, in order to improve road safety and service quality.

In addition to the above programme, Autostrade per I'Italia’s new Single Concession Arrangement also

envisages further investment totalling €7 billion, via:

extensions to projects already included in the Agreement of 1997, involving new specific network upgrades
worth approximately €2 billion;
a commitment to develop preliminary designs for the upgrade of certain sections of motorway operated

under concession, totalling around 325 km, at a cost of approximately €5 billion.
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Upgrade and modernisation of the network operated under concession in Italy

In 2013 Autostrade per 1'Italia and the Group’s other motorway operators invested a total of €876.8 million,
marking a reduction of €383 million (30.4%) compared with 2012.

Capital expenditure ®

(€M) 2013 2012 % INCREASE/DECREASE
Autostrade per I'ltalia - projects in Agreement of 1997 296.9 380.5 -22.0%
Autostrade per I'ltalia - projects in IV Addendum of 2002 281.9 616.2 -54.3%
Investment in major works by other operators 35.2 35.9 -1.9%
Other capital expenditure and capitalised costs (staff, 194.7 168.0 15.9%
maintenance and other)

Total inv_estment in infrastructure operated under 808.7 1,200.6 -32.6%
concession

Investment in other intangible assets 17.9 16.0 11.9%
Investment in property, plant and equipment 50.2 43.2 16.2%
Total capital expenditure in Italy 876.8 1,259.8 -30.4%

(*) After stripping out Autostrada Torino-Savona, a company sold in 2012.

The volume of investment relating to works envisaged in Autostrade per I'Italia’s Agreement of 1997 is down
€83.6 million from 2012, primarily due to the fact that work has been at a standstill in Tuscany following the
investigation launched by the Public Prosecutor’s Office in Florence regarding the reuse of soil and rocks
resulting from excavation work, and to the approaching completion of the principal works for the Variante di
Valico.

The volume of investment in works envisaged in Autostrade per I'Italia’s IV Addendum is down €334..3
million from 2012, primarily reflecting the completion of a number of works on motorways opened to traffic
in 2012 (the A9 Lainate-Como and the Rimini North-Cattolica, Fano-Senigallia and Ancona South-Porto
Sant’Elpidio sections of the A14) and the financial difficulties affecting certain contruction companies, with

effects on work in progress.

Stage of completion of works being carried out by Autostrade per I'Italia and the Group’s

other Italian motorway operators

The following tables show major works to be carried out as part of the upgrade of the network operated under
concession, based on the commitments given in the respective concession arrangements.

The estimated value of each project includes the overall cost (before any government grants) of the works, as
assessed at the end of December 2013.
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Mont-Blanc

n Varese
Aosta

Udine
Como

AR

| Piacenza
.. Modena
Savona /' Genoa

Turin

mmmm  Network operated by Autostrade per I'ltalia and its subsidiaries
——— Network operated by other operators
= = == Works under evaluation
Km opened (€/bn) (€/bn)
Total km to traffic total @ completed
Autostrade per I'ltalia
mmmm  Financial Plan 1997 237 151 6.6 4.8
<= IV Addendum 2002 270 195 7.3 2.9
== Single Arrangement 2007 @ 325 - 5.0 -
O Other projects - - 2.0 0.2
Total 832 346 20.9 7.9
Subsidiaries
mmmm  Construction of Valle d’Aosta Link Road 12 12 0.4 0.4
messs Construction of third lane by SAM © 20 15 0.6 0.5
Total 32 27 1.0 0.9 )jf‘
Group total 864 373 21.9 8.8

| .
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Pescara

Bari

Castellammare
di Stabia

Taranto

(1) Total cost of carrying out the works, as assessed as at 31 December 2012, including the base bid price (net of bid or agreed reductions), available funds,
recognised reserves and early completion bonuses.
The value of works under the Arrangement of 1997 are net of an amount included in “Other investment”.
(2) The Single Arrangement signed by Autostrade per I'ltalia on 12 October 2007 provides for further upgrades of the network, totalling around 325 km, at a cost
of approximately €5 billion, in addition to new specific projects worth approximately €2 billion.
(3) The concession held by Autostrade Meridionali expired on 31 December 2012. At the Grantor’s request, in 2013 the company continued to be responsible for
ordinary operation of the motorway, including completion of the investment plan, whilst awaiting the transfer of the concession to the new operator (subject
to recognition of the related takeover right).
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Planned upgrades and modernisation of the network operated under concession

PROJECT STATUS AS AT 31.12.2013 KM COVERED VALUE STAGE OF KM OPENED TO
BY PROJECT OF PROJECT @ COMPLETION AS TRAFFIC AS AT

(KM) (€M) AT 31.12.2013 31.12.2013 ®
(KM) (€M)

Autostrade per I'ltalia: Arrangement of 1997

A8 3rd and 4th lanes Milan-Gallarate Completed 28.7 65 28.7 65
Al 4th lane Modena-Bologna Completed 31.6 178 31.6 144
A14 3rd lane Bologna Ring Road Completed @ 13.7 59 13.7 59
Al 3rd lane Casalecchio-Sasso Marconi  Completed 4.1 82 4.1 82
Al Variante di Valico Work in progress/completed © 62.5 3,890 19.4 3,387
A1l 3rd lane Barberino-Incisa @ 58.5 2,056 15.2 881
A1 3rd lane Orte-Rome North Completed 37.8 192 37.8 191
Other projects Work in progress/completed © 28 n.a. 24
Total projects under Arrangement of 1997 236.9 6,550 150.5 4,833
Projects included in IV Addendum of 2002 )
Al 3rd lane Fiano R.-Settebagni and Completed 15.9 132 15.9 124
Castelnuovo di Porto junction
A4 A4th lane Milan East-Bergamo Completed 33.6 505 33.6 501
A8 5th lane Milan-Lainate Executive design under approval 4.4 219 0.0 3
A9 3rd lane Lainate-Como Grandate Completed 23.2 344 23.2 297
A14 3rd lane Rimini North-Porto Work in progress/completed © 154.7 2,405 118.6 1,693
Sant’Elpidio
A7/A10/A12 Genoa Bypass Environmental Impact 34.8 3,263 0.0 48

Assessment/Services
Conference in progress

A8 Access for New Milan Exhibition Completed 3.8 86 3.8 86
Centre

Other projects @ - 345 n.a. 185

Total projects under IV Addendum 270.4 7,299 195.1 2,937

of 2002

Subsidiaries

A5 RAV AO-Mont Blanc Tunnel (A5) Completed 12.4 430 12.4 419
Morgex-Entréves

A3 Autostrade Meridionall NA-Pompeii-  Work in progress/completed 20.0 553 15.0 509
SA (A3) Naples-Pompeii @

Total projects of subsidiaries 324 983 27.4 928

Total investment in major works 539.7 14,832 373.0 8,698

(a) Total cost of carrying out the works, as assessed at 31 December 2013, including the base bid price (net of bid or agreed reductions), available funds, recognised
reserves and early completion bonuses.

The value of works under the Arrangement of 1997 is net of an amount included in “Other investment”.

(b) Excludes capitalised costs (financial expenses and staff costs).

(c) Final approval given in 2004.

(d) Planned widening on Autostrade Meridionali’s network regards 24.5 km, including 4.5 km already open to traffic over duration of Arrangement of 1972-1992.
The concession held by Autostrade Meridionali expired on 31 December 2012. As requested by the Grantor, from 1 January 2013 the company has continued
to be responsible for ordinary operation of the motorway, including completion of the investment plan, whilst awaiting the transfer of the concession to the new
operator (subject to recognition of the related takeover right”).

(1) Includes construction of the Modena Ring Road, which forms part of the works requested by local authorities and is awaiting approval from the Services
Conference. This cannot be closed until a new Arrangement has been agreed by ANAS and the authorities concerned.

(2) Total investments of €247 million, of which €59 million in the Major Works Plan of 1997 and €188 million in “Other investment”.

(3) 19.4 km is open to traffic between Sasso Marconi and La Quercia. Work on Lot 12, of which 4.5 km has been completed and will be opened to traffic to coincide
with completion of work on the Base Tunnel and Lot 13. Work is in progress on the remaining section of motorway.

(4) Work on Lot O on the Barberino-Florence North section is in progress. Tender procedures are underway for the remaining lots. Approximately 21.9 km of third
lane is open to traffic between Florence North and Florence South. The final design for Lot 1 of the Florence South-Incisa section is under approval by the
Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport, whilst the Environmental Impact Assessment for Lot 2 is in progress.

(5) Work on widening the bridge over the Volturno, the Rio Tufano viaduct and the Marano viaduct has been completed. Construction of the Lodi junction and re-
routing of the Lodi Vecchio section has been completed (TAV Agreement).

(6) Approximately 118.6 km of third lane is open to traffic between Rimini North and Senigallia and between Ancona South and Porto Sant’Elpidio, in addition to
the new junctions at Montemarciano, Porto Sant’Elpidio and Senigallia. Work is in progress on Lots 4 (Senigallia-Ancona North, 18.9 km) and 5 (Ancona North -
Ancona South, 17.2 km).

(7) The tender procedure is underway for the Maddaloni junction; work is in progress on the Tunnel Safety Plan and on the Padua Industrial Park junction; work has
been completed on the Villamarzana, Ferentino, Guidonia and Rubicone junctions.
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The final cost of the work is subject to change based on the effective future stage of completion of the work.

In spite of the Group’s determination to push ahead with design work and organisation of the projects, the

above complications and problems relating to approvals may well continue to delay completion of works, with

the following implications:

- the impossibility of making a reasonable estimate of the date of completion and entry into service of the
various works, especially those where the related contracts have yet to be awarded;

- potential cost overruns due to disputes and eventual changes to designs.

In 2009 Autostrade per I'Italia’s Board of Directors set up a body known as the “Committee responsible for the

Completion of Projects", with the role of monitoring:

. the performance of infrastructure investment plans in terms of state of progress of the works, the related
costs and compliance with the commitments given by the company and its subsidiaries in the relevant
concession arrangements;

+  the process of selecting contractors to carry out the works;

- the organisational and procedural aspects of carrying out the works;

. the state of contract reserves;

- the status of the most important legal disputes.

The Committee met 7 times in 2013, proceeding with the same activities carried out in the period 2009-2012.

Investment in major works by Autostrade per I'Italia - 1997 Agreement

Of the works included in Autostrade per I'Italia SpA’s Agreement of 1997, as at 31 December 2013 over 95% of
the works have been authorised, more than 80% have been contracted out, and 74.% have been completed.

The 1997 Agreement originally envisaged expenditure of €3,556 million for the above works.

The updated Financial Plan of 2002, which was included in the IV Addendum, entailed revisions to
construction schedules and to the estimated total cost of the works, which was increased to €4,500 million,
reflecting accumulated delays in obtaining approvals. It was, moreover, ruled that the delays were not the fault
of Autostrade per I'Italia, and that the financial benefits arising from the delays in carrying out the works were,
in any case, less than the increase in costs to be borne by the company.

The increase in costs above the levels originally set out in the Financial Plan annexed to the Agreement of 1997,
are primarily the result of the above delays in the authorisation process, which have led to price increases,

and of subsequently issued regulations. Cost increases were also caused by works requested by local authorities
involved in the approval and authorisation process. It is not envisaged that Autostrade per I'Italia will be able to

claw back past and future cost overruns through increases in tolls.

When, moreover, construction schedules were revised and agreed during the drafting of the IV Addendum in
mid-2002, the authorisation process for many sections had not yet been completed (for Casalecchio-Sasso
Marconi, Lots 5, 6, 77, 8, 13 and 14 of the Variante di Valico, Barberino-Florence North, Lots 4., 5 and 6 of
the Florence North-Florence South section, Florence South-Incisa and the Bologna Ring Road) and it was not
possible to estimate when this might occur.

From 2002 to date, all the authorisation procedures have been completed for the upgrade of the Al between
Bologna and Florence, even though much later than forecast in 2002, with the exception of Lot 2 (7.5 km) of
the Florence South-Incisa section, for which it has not been possible to finalise the agreement between central
government and the regional authority, and for which modifications to the earlier design were required. The
new design is currently undergoing an Environmental Impact Assessment.

At the end of 2013 the final cost of the works (based on contracts in progress and final and executive designs
awaiting authorisation) amounts to €6.6 billion. Of this, works with a value of over €4.8 billion have been
completed, a figure that is higher than the estimated cost of the works set out in the IV Addendum of 2002.
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Compared with the initial estimate of €3.6 billion, on the basis of which the company was privatised, the

additional expense to be borne by the operator amounts to €3.0 billion.

Investment in major works by Autostrade per I'Italia - IV Addendum 2002

Investments envisaged in the IV Addendum are designed to upgrade the network close to a number of major
conurbations (Milan, Genoa and Rome) and along the Adriatic coast. The authorisation process for works
covered by the IV Addendum, signed by Autostrade per I'Italia in December 2002, was completed and became
effective in June 2004, following a letter from ANAS announcing that the inter ministerial decree approving
the Addendum had been registered with the Italian Court of Auditors. Work on the designs relating to the
investment programme envisaged by the IV Addendum could thus only start from this date, after a delay of 21
months with respect to the original programme.

As at 31 December 2013 over 54% of the works have been authorised, approximately 50% have been contracted

out and over 40% have been completed.

The most important project included in the IV Addendum, from both a technical and financial viewpoint,
is the Genoa Interchange, for which the authorization process is still ongoing. The project aims to relieve
congestion on the section of the AI0 most used by traffic heading in and out of the city of Genoa, from the
Genoa West toll station (the Port of Genoa) to the residential district of Voltri. This will involve transferring
heavy vehicles on to a new road running alongside the existing motorway, effectively doubling capacity.

On 23 January 2014 the Environmental Impact Assessment for the Genoa Interchange was completed.

To take account of accumulated delays in the approval process, the revised Financial Plan, included in the
Addendum to the Single Concession Arrangement of 24 December 2013, has amended the schedule for

carrying out the works and the estimated total cost, increasing it to €3.3 billion.

The investments included in the IV Addendum are associated with specific toll increases linked to validation of

the individual works and based on the stage of completion.

Planned investment in major works by the Group’s other Italian motorway operators

With regard to investments in new works by Autostrade per I'Italia’s subsidiaries (Raccordo Autostradale Valle
d’Aosta and Autostrade Meridionali), as at 31 December 2013 100% of the works have been authorised, 100%
of the works are being carried out or the related contracts are being awarded, and 94.% have been completed.
The concession held by Autostrade Meridionali expired on 31 December 2012. As requested by the Grantor,
from I January 2013 the company has continued to be responsible for ordinary operation of the motorway,
whilst awaiting the transfer of the concession to the new operator.

Work on the planned upgrade and modernisation of the motorway continued in 2013 and as at 31 December

over 92% of the upgrade works have been completed.

Contract reserves quantified by contractors

As at 31 December 2013 Group companies have recognised contract reserves quantified by contractors
amounting to approximately €2,050 million (€1,600 million as at 3T December 2012).
Based on past experience, only a small percentage of the reserves will actually have to be paid to contractors and,

in this case, will be accounted for as an increase in the cost of concession rights.
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Other activities

AD Moving

The Italian advertising market recorded a further significant decline in 2013 (advertising spend was down
7.2% compared with November 2012, with a downward trend of 13% for the first eleven months, according to
Nielsen).

Against this backdrop, AD Moving generated total revenue of €9.0 million in 2013, down 4.6% on the €9.5
million of 2012.

“Net operating costs” of €8.6 million are substantially in line with 2012.

“Gross operating profit” (EBITDA) of €0.5 million is down on the figure for 2012 (€0.9 million).

In order to expand its commercial offering and enter the market for digital advertising (the only one
registering growth), in April 2013 AD Moving launched the first network of LED walls on the Italian motorway
network. The displays installed at 4 service areas, which were selected from among the biggest with the

largest footfall, broadcast commercials and adverts interspersed with weather forecast and motorway traffic
information updates.

AD Moving’s business model is currently under review with the aim of increasing competitiveness and keeping

pace with market trends. The potential for new strategic partnerships is also being looked at.

TowerCo

TowerCo is responsible for the construction and management of fully equipped sites located around the
motorway network managed under concession by Group companies in Italy and on land owned by other parties
(municipal authorities and other motorway operators, etc.). These sites host antennae and equipment used by
commercial operators (mobile communications companies and TV and radio broadcasters) and public services
(police, Isoradio and traffic monitoring systems).

As at 31 December 2013 there are 306 sites in operation (of which 94 providing GSM/UMTS mobile coverage
in motorway tunnels), g sites are undergoing final tests before entering service in early 2014, a further 3 sites
are in progress and another 20 are awaiting receipt of the necessary permits and/or are at the design stage.

The company reports revenue of €21.5 million for 2013 (€19.6 million in 2012), with EBITDA of €12.7
million (€11.6 million for 2012).
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Overseas moto rways W

The results of the overseas motorways segment for 2013 benefit from increases in traffic, reported primarily
by the Chilean and Brazilian operators, and rises in the tolls applied by the Chilean operators (from January
2013).

A package of measures designed to compensate Brazilian operators for the reduction in revenue resulting from
the decision to delay the toll increases normally appied from I July of each year was introduced.This included,
among other things, the right to charge for the suspended axles of heavy vehicles and a halving of the variable
component of the concession fee payable to the Public Transport Services Regulator for the State of Sao Paulo
(ARTESP). Further information on this matter is provided in the section, “Significant regulatory aspects and
litigation”.

Traffic on the networks operated by all the Group’s overseas operators rose in terms of kilometres travelled
compared with 2012: up 7.2% in Chile and 4.8% in Brazil, with growth of 10.2% registered by Stalexport in
Poland.

The Chilean operators generated total revenue of €180.6 million in 2013 (including toll revenue of €160.0
million), marking an increase of 33.6% (41.6% on a constant currency basis) compared with 2012. €36.3
million of this increase is due to consolidation of the operators controlled by Grupo Costanera from 1 April
2012.

EBITDA amounts to €132.5 million, up €39.8 million on 2012 (€92.7 million). €25.9 million of the increase

is due to the first-time consolidation of the new Chilean companies.

The Brazilian operators generated total revenue of €317.7 million in 2013 (including toll revenue of €309.5
million), marking an increase of 35.1% (51.4% on a constant currency basis) compared with 2012. €84.2
million of this increase is due to consolidation of the Brazilian operators, Colinas and Nascentes, from I July
2012.

EBITDA of €235.1 million is up €72.4 million on 2012 (€162.7 million). €63.0 million of the increase is due

to first-time consolidation of the new Brazilian companies.

In Poland the Stalexport Autostrady group registered total revenue of €50.4 million (including toll
revenue of €4.8.3 million), marking an increase of 12.0% (12.4% on a constant currency basis) compared
with 2012.

EBITDA of €38.9 million is up 17.2% (17.4% on a constant currency basis) on 2012 (€33.2 million).

(1) The following analysis is based on aggregate amounts that do not take into account the eliminations of any transactions between companies belonging to the
same segment.
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Chile

The Atlantia Group is one of the leading motorway operators in Chile through:

+  the operator, Los Lagos, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, which holds the concession for a 135 km
section of Ruta 5 between Rio Bueno and Puerto Montt;

- the holding company, Grupo Costanera, which is 50.01% owned by the Atlantia Group and 49.99%
owned by CPPIB (Canada Pension Plan Investment Board), and which operates, among others, around

100 km of urban motorway in the capital of Chile, Santiago.

Grupo Costanera and its subsidiaries have been consolidated since 1 April 2012.

Concessionaires

GROUP’S INVESTMENT (%) KM CONCESSION EXPIRY
Grupo Costanera 50.01™
Costanera Norte 100.0 43 2033
Acceso Vial Aeropuerto AMB 100.0 10 2020
Litoral Central 100.0 81 2031
Nororiente 100.0 22 2044
Vespucio Sur 100.0 24 2032
Los Lagos 100.0 135 2023

(*) The remaining 49.99% of Grupo Costanera is held by Canada Pension Plan Investment Board.

Chilean operators’ results for the year, which are converted into euros, reflect the decline in the value of the
Chilean peso versus the euro, which resulted in a reduction in the exchange rate from 624.6 Chilean pesos per
euro for Los Lagos (the average rate for the period of consolidation from January to December 2012) and from
619.3 Chilean pesos per euro for Grupo Costanera (the average rate for the period of consolidation from April
to December 2012) to an average rate of 658.3 Chilean pesos per euro in 2013.

Key performance indicators

REVENUE EBITDA ADJUSTED REVENUE ADJUSTED EBITDA ) CAPEX

2012 %INC,/ 2012 %INC/ 2013 2012 %INC,/ 2013 2012 %INC/ pIK] 2012 %INC/

(DEC.) (DEC.) (DEC.) (DEC.) (DEC.)

Los Lagos 20.5 196  4.6% 13.5 9.3 45.2% 42.0 409  2.7% 35.0 30.6  14.4% 0.1 0.2 -50.0%
Grupo

Costanera "
Costanera Norte 81.1 56.9 n.s. 59.7 41.1 na. 116.9 84.1 n.s. 95.5 68.3 n.a. 38.4 0.2 n.s.

Nororiente 4.2 3.2 n.s. 0.7 0.1 n.a. 17.1 13.3 n.s. 12.2 10.1 n.a. - - n.s.
Vespucio Sur 71.0 52.9 n.s. 60.0 42.6 n.a. 71.0 52.9 n.s. 60.0 42.6 n.a. - 0.8 n.s.
Litoral Central 25 1.7 n.s. 0.2 0.3 n.a. 12.3 8.5 n.s. 9.6 6.5 n.a. - - n.s.
AMB 1.4 0.9 n.s. 0.2 0.1 n.a. 1.4 0.9 n.s. 0.2 0.1 n.a. 0.2 0.6 n.s.

(*) Information on the nature of the adjustments made and differences between reported and adjusted amounts is provided in the specific section of the
“Consolidated financial review”.
(**) Amounts for 2012 refer solely to the period of consolidation (from 1 April 2012).

In 2013 the Group’s Chilean operators recorded overall traffic growth of 7.2%.

During 2013 the Chilean operator, Los Lagos, registered a 7.0% increase in traffic in terms of kilometres
travelled compared with 2012.

Traffic on the network managed by the operators present in the metropolitan area of Santiago registered
increases of from 4.4% for Costanera Norte, located in the more urban districts of the capital, and
9.8% for Vespucio Sur, up to 20.3% for Nororiente, serving a highly developed residential and business
district.
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On the network managed by Litoral Central, located along the coast to the west of the capital, traffic grew
8.9%.

Traffic
TRAFFIC (MILLIONS OF KM TRAVELLED) TRAFFIC (THOUSANDS OF JOURNEYS)

2013 2012 % INC./(DEC.) 2013 2012 % INC./(DEC.)
Los Lagos 551.8 515.9 7.0% 14,662 13,413 9.3%
Grupo Costanera
Costanera Norte 960.4 920.1 4.4% 211,228 203,863 3.6%
Nororiente (*) 66.7 55.5 20.3% 5,579 4,679 19.2%
Vespucio Sur 796.2 724.9 9.8% 260,401 236,907 9.9%
Litoral Central 91.6 84.2 8.9% 3,680 3,358 9.6%
AMB 21.1 19.7 7.0% 9,167 8,570 7.0%
Total 2,487.8 2,320.3 7.2% 504,717 470,789 7.2%

(*) 2012 figures are different from those reported in 2012 Annual Report due to a successive finalization of traffic figures.

From I January 2013 the tolls applied by Los Lagos rose 3.1%, reflecting the inflation-linked increase of 2.1%,
an increase relating to safety improvements (up 2.7%) and the rounding off of tariffs to the nearest 100 pesos

(down 1.6%).

From 1 January 2013 the operators controlled by Grupo Costanera applied the annual toll increases calculated
under the terms of the related concession arrangements:

- 5.7% for Costanera Norte and Vespucio Sur, reflecting the increase for inflation (2.1%) plus a further
increase of 3.5%;

4.7% for Nororiente, reflecting the increase for inflation (2.1%) plus a further increase of 3.5% and the
rounding off of tariffs to the nearest 50 pesos (down 0.9%);

6.3% for AMB, reflecting an increase to make up for inflation during the period 2009-2011 (up 4..7%)
plus a further increase of 1.5% (AMB'’s tolls remained unchanged until 2012, the year in which investment
in the free-flow tolling system was completed. The increase designed to keep pace with inflation in 2012
will be included in the increase for 2014.);

2.1% for Litoral Central, equal to inflation.

On 23 December 2013 the Chilean President signed into law Supreme Decree 318, ratifying the investment
programme named “Programma SCO” (Santiago Centro Oriente). The process has been completed on

12 March 2014 with publication of the Decree in the Official Gazette of Chilean Republic. The programme
covers seven projects designed to eliminate the principal bottlenecks on the section operated under
concession. The total value of the work to be carried out is around 230 billion pesos (approximately €320
million). The agreement envisages that the operator will receive specific payment from the grantor in return
for the above construction services, including a final payment at the expiry of the concession term designed
to guarantee a minimum return, and a share of the increase in revenue deriving from the installation of new
tollgates.

Further information is provided in the section, “Significant regulatory aspects and litigation”.

The operator, AMB, has plans in place for the construction of the remaining 8 km forming part of the total
of 10 km covered by the concession at an estimated cost of approximately €30 million. Work should start at
the beginning of 2014 and be completed in 2016. This investment is included in the company’s financial
plan.
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Brazil

The Atlantia Group is one of the leading motorway operators in Brazil through the subsidiary, Atlantia
Bertin Concessdes SA, set up in partnership with the Bertin group, and which manages a total of 1,538 km
of network.

The Atlantia Group holds 50% + I share of Infra Bertin Participacdes SA, a Brazilian holding company set up
with the Bertin group, and which in turn controls Atlantia Bertin Concessdes SA.

Atlantia Bertin Concessdes SA and its subsidiaries, Rodovias das Colinas and Concessionaria da Rodovia
MGo50, have been consolidated since I July 2012, whilst Triangulo do Sol has been consolidated since I July
20I1I.

Following the merger of Atlantia Bertin Participagdes SA with and into Atlantia Bertin Concessdes SA with
effect from I July 2013, Atlantia Bertin Concessdes SA owns 50% of Tiete®™, the holder of the concession
(expiring in 2039) for 417 km of road in the state of Sao Paolo, in the area between Bauru and Campinas.

Concessionaires
GROUP'S INVESTMENT (%) KM CONCESSION EXPIRY
Atlantia Bertin Concessdes 50+1 share
Triangulo do Sol 100 442 2021
Rodovias das Colinas 100 307 2028
Rodovia MGO50 100 372 2032
Rodovias do Tiete 50 417 2039

(*) Through the holding company, Infra Bertin Participacées SA.
(**) The remaining 50% is held by Ascendi-Mota Engil.

Atlantia Bertin Concessdes SA also has an option to acquire a 100% interest in Infra Bertin Empreendimentos
SA, which owns a 95% interest in SPMAR, the company that holds the concession to operate a part of the
Rodoanel, the 105-km orbital toll motorway serving Sao Paulo, of which approximately 60 km is in operation,
with the remainder under construction.

Toll increases in the State of Sao Paulo are applied from I July of each year based on the inflation rate for the
previous 12 months.

Following the recent civil unrest in the country, in June 2013 the Governor of the State of Sao Paulo decided to
delay introduction of the motorway toll increases due to be applied from 1 July in order to bring tolls into line
with the inflation rate for the last 12 months.

The resolution published by the Public Transport Services Regulator for the State of Sao Paulo (ARTESP),
dated 27 June 2013, and subsequent implementation guidelines issued by ARTESP and the Secretariat

for Logistics and Transport in the State of Sao Paulo (SLT) contained a package of measures designed to
compensate operators for the lack of an increase in tolls. The measures include cancellation of 50% of the
variable fee payable to ARTESP (reduced from 3% to 1.5% of revenue) for the months of July, August and
September 2013 and the right to charge for the suspended axles of heavy vehicles from 28 July 2013. On 14
December ARTESP extended the 50% reduction of the variable fee to I.5% for an indefinite period. Should
the above compensation not be sufficient to maintain the financial conditions of the arrangements, the
concession arrangements provide for compensation via an extension of the concession term for a period to be

calculated on the basis of the discount rate originally required by the agreement.

In terms of kilometres travelled, the operator, Triangulo do Sol, reports traffic growth of 6.2% in 2013,
whilst Rodovias das Colinas registered growth of 6.0% and Rodovias do Tieté growth of 2.7%.Concessionaria
da Rodovia MG0o50 (Rodovia MGO50) recorded an increase of 2.9%, partly reflecting the downturn in
international demand for the minerals extracted in the state of Minas Gerais, in the south-west of which the

operator is located.
(1) The remaining 50% is held by Ascendi-Mota Engil.
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The results for the year, after conversion into euros, reflect the decline in the value of the Brazilian real versus
the euro, which resulted in a reduction in the exchange rate from 2.51 Brazilian reals per euro for Triangulo
do Sol (the average rate for the period of consolidation from January to December 2012) and 2.60 Brazilian
reals per euro for Rodovias das Colinas and Rodovia MGo50 (the average rate for the period of consolidation

from July to December 2012) to an average rate of 2.87 Brazilian reals per euro in 2013.

Key performance indicators

TRAFFIC (MILLIONS OF KM TRAVELLED) REVENUE EBITDA

2013 2012 % INC./ 2012 % INC./ 2012 % INC./

(DEC.) (DEC.) (DEC.)

Triangulo do Sol 1,481.8 1,395.8 6.2% 137.3 139.5 -1.6% 102.4 101.7 0.7%

Rodovias das Colinas 2,037.4 1,921.5 6.0% 149.3 78.9 n.s. 112.0 49.3 n.s.

Rodovia MGO50 778.1 756.3 2.9% 31.1 16.7 n.s. 20.7 11.6 n.s.
Rodovias do Tieté 1,303.1  1,268.2 2.7%
Total 5,600.4 5,341.8 4.8%

(*) Amounts for 2012 refer solely to the period of consolidation (from 1 July 2012).

The operators, Triangulo do Sol, Rodovias das Colinas and Rodovia MGO50 are investing with a view to

expanding and upgrading the sections they operate. The remaining amounts and completion dates are shown

below:
CAPEX
€M EXPIRY
Triangulo do Sol 27 2018
Rodovias das Colinas 65 2019
Rodovia MGO50 223 2032
Total 315

Poland

The Polish operator, Stalexport Autostrada Malopolska, recorded a 10.2% increase in kilometres travelled in
2013, compared with 2012, with light vehicles up 10.6% and heavy vehicles 8.3%.

The increases are primarily due to the poor weather conditions seen in the first quarter of 2012 and
extraordinary maintenance on one of the alternative roads carried out from May 2013.

The Stalexport Autostrady group registered total revenue of €50.4 million in 2013 (including toll revenue of
€48.3 million), marking an increase of 12.0% (12.4% on a constant currency basis) compared with 2012.

EBITDA of €38.9 million is up 17.2% (17.4% on a constant currency basis) on 2012 (€33.2 million).

India

On 17 February 2009 Atlantia, in consortium (50-50) with TRIL Roads Private Limited, a Tata group
company, was awarded a 21-year concession for the 110-km Pune-Solapur section of motorway in the Indian
state of Maharashtra. On 4 February 2013 the first 85 km of the Pune-Solapur section of motorway to be
completed entered service. Work on widening the remaining 25 km of motorway from two to four lanes is
nearing completion. Under the concession arrangement, construction work was to last 30 months from

14 November 2009. The necessary expropriations of land by the Grantor were subject to delays, whilst the
deadline for handing over all the land was 14. February 2010. The Grantor has so far made approximately 95%
of the land available and the deadline for completion of the work has thus been exceeded. The contractors have

raised the issue of delay costs, partly linked to the delay in completing the work, with the operator.
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On 5 May 2013 A&T Road Construction Management and Operation Private Limited, a company 50% owned
by the Atlantia Group and 50% owned by the Tata group, was established. The company will be the vehicle
responsible for operation and maintenance on behalf of the operator, Pune Solapur.

The operator applied the toll increase of 5.9% provided for in the concession arrangement from 5 August
2013. This is calculated on the basis of 3% + 40%*WPI (the wholesale price index). Approximately 22,000
journeys a day (the total for the two barriers) have been registered since the road entered service until 31

December 2013, with 46% being light vehicles and 54.% heavy vehicles.
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Italian airports S

Following the merger of Gemina SpA with and into Atlantia SpA, from I December 2013 the latter controls the
companies previously controlled by Gemina. Atlantia now has a 95.9% interest in Aeroporti di Roma (ADR),
the group that operates Rome’s airport system. As a result, from this date the Atlantia Group consolidates

the income statements and statements of financial position of the Aeroporti di Roma group ("ADR”) and the
companies, Fiumicino Energia and Leonardo Energia, which therefore contribute to the Atlantia Group’s
results for 2013 solely for the month of December. For information only, a brief account of operations and the

full-year results for 2013 is provided below.

The new Planning Agreement

ADR exclusively manages Rome’s airport system by virtue of the concession granted to the Company by Law 755
of 10 November 1973, and the Concession Arrangement “Agreement regarding the operation of Rome’s airport
system and the Planning Agreement” (the “Planning Agreement”) signed on 25 October 2012, which replaced
the previous Service Concession Arrangement 2820 of 26 June 1974. This Single Deed, which regulates
relations between the operator and ENAC (the Italian Civil Aviation Authority), expires on 30 June 204.4..

On 21 December 2012, the Cabinet Office - at the proposal of the Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport,
and in agreement with the Ministry of the Economy and Finance - approved the Planning Agreement with
amendments and additions, which were recognised in a specific Addendum, signed by ENAC and ADR on 27
December 2012. The notice from the Cabinet Office announcing approval of the Single Deed was published in
the Official Gazette on 28 December 2012.

The Cabinet Office Decree and the Planning Agreement were registered with the Court of Auditors on 8
March, and the new fees for regulated activities came into effect on 9 March 2013.

The new regulatory framework approved by the Civil Aviation Authority has laid down a consistent set of
transparent and stable regulations to be applied until the end of the concession (]une 204.4.), which will enable

private financing of ADR’s investment plan.

The fee structure is based on internationally recognised criteria relating to infrastructure and service
costs, thus promoting the efficiency targets provided for by Directive 2009/12/EC and Law 27/2012. The
fee regulations, which will be applied until the end of the concession, are based on:

1) a RAB-based price-cap method that links the fees to financially regulated service costs. The initial
value of the regulatory asset base (RAB) on I January 2013 is also set at €1.8 billion, which is then
updated annually via regulatory accounting;

2) adual-till system whereby all revenues from non-aviation activities are attributed to the airport

operator;
(1) The following analysis is based on aggregate amounts that do not take into account the eliminations of any transactions between companies belonging to the
same segment.
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3) application of bonuses and penalties when environmental and quality indicators are above or below the
targets set by the Civil Aviation Authority.

- Fee review: the new Planning Agreement clearly defines - in terms of content, methods and timeframes
- mechanisms and motives to be taken into account when revising the financial plan through to 2044,
the ten-year regulatory periods (which are broken down into regulatory sub—periods) and the variables
contained in the annual fee mechanism.

. Permitted returns: for the first fee period (2012-2016) the real pre-tax WACC amounts to
11.91%,corresponding to a post-tax nominal value of 8.58%. The Planning Agreement defines all the
parameters and criteria for revising WACC, most of which are to be reviewed every five or every ten years.
Real pre-tax WACC, applicable to new works of particular strategic or environmental value, will be raised
by an amount ranging from 2 to 4%.

- Differences between forecast and actual traffic performance: increases/decreases in traffic within a
range of + or - 5% compared with forecasts will constitute income or expenses for ADR. In the event
of higher increases, 50% of the increase in revenues will be allocated for future investment with no
impact on fees; in the event of lower decreases, 50% of the reduction in revenues will be included in
the costs permitted for fee calculations regarding the subsequent five-year sub-period. Particularly
substantial increases and reductions may constitute grounds for requesting changes to planned

infrastructure works.

On 20 March 2013 a hearing of the appeals lodged at the Lazio Regional Administrative Court by Assohandlers
and Assaereo against the Concession Arrangement-Planning Agreement was held, at which the appellants
waived discussion of injunctive relief. At a hearing on 10 April 2013 Lazio Regional Administrative Court did
not grant the injunction requested by Codacons (representing Italian consumers), which also regarded the
Concession Arrangement-Planning Agreement. The three appeals were merged at the hearing scheduled to
discuss the cases on 18 December 2013. The parties agreed to an adjournment of the discussion, which was
scheduled for 12 March 2014. The grounds for the adjournment regard attempts made to reach agreement
among the parties concerned on a waiver of the appeals lodged by the appellants.

Four special appeals to the Head of State lodged by Consulta (a handler), Lufthansa, Austrian Airlines, Swiss
International Airlines, shipping agents operating at Ciampino (AICAI, DHL and TNT) and cargo operators
will also be discussed at the hearing on 12 March 2014.

Comparison between ADR’s fees and other European airport fees
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The second, and conclusive, annual meeting/consultation with airport users, regarding the proposed fees

for 2014, was held at Fiumicino airport on 14 January. The fees were applied from I March 2014. During

the meeting the company presented: its investment programme for 2014, revised on the basis of the new
reformulated plan that no longer includes the investment previously to be brought forward in accordance with
the Cabinet Office Decree of 21 December 2012 for the present fee sub-period of 2012-2016; actual traffic
figures for 2013 and projections for 2014 and the final fee structure for 2014, which forecasts an average fee of
€28.2 per departing passenger.
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Financial review for ADR in 20193

Revenue from airport management, amounting to €664..4 million, is up 22.2% on 2012, due to the combined
effect of growth in aviation revenue, following the increase in fees deriving from the Planning Agreement,
and a slight fall in the non-aviation segment, primarily due to the loss of canteen service revenue and the

performances Of property and car park management and advertising.

Net operating costs fell by €18.9 million.

Specifically, the cost of materials and external services is down €16.3 million, due to the combined effect of
increased costs for service quality and safety improvements, reduced energy costs due to falls in consumption
and prices, and the effect of extraordinary expenses regarding: (i) settlement of the fee for fire ﬁghting services
(around €14.0 million net of registration fees); and (ii) recognition of expenses amounting to €6.7 million
relating to disputes with the tax authorities.

Concession fees, amounting to €28.8 million, are up €20.6 million due to the fee increase scheduled to
coincide with application of the Planning Agreement.

The cost of construction services, amounting to €19.3 million, is up €10.4 million on the previous year, due to
the increase in services.

Staff costs, totalling €112.5 million, registered a 3.8% rise due to expansion the Group’s workforce engaged

in operating activities (full-time equivalents up 71.9) compared with 2012 (net of direct retail and vehicle
maintenance staff employed in businesses sold in 2012), deriving from programmes to strengthen technical

departments and an increase in the number of seasonal staff employed in operational departments.

EBITDA amounts to €423.5 million, representing a €137.9 million improvement on the previous year (up
48.3%), and an EBITDA margin based on revenue from airport management up from 52.5% in 2012 to
63.7%.

Traffic performance

In 2013 Rome’s airport system handled more than 41.0 million passengers, down 1.3% on the previous year.
In terms of capacity, movements are down 3.7%, aircraft tonnage down 3.4% and the number of available seats
is down 4.1%. The lower reduction in the number of passengers compared with the decline in capacity offered

thus led to an increase in the load factor (73.9%), representing a 2.1% increase.

The breakdown of passengers by geographical area registered increases in the Middle East (up 5.7%), Europe
(Eastern Europe up 5.5%; Western Europe up 0.9%) and Central and South America (up 1.1%), while volumes
to and from Africa were largely stable (up 0.2%) and the other areas registered decreases (North America down
2.0%), and the Far East down 2.1%). The volume of traffic in the domestic segment registered a 7.1% fall.
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Graph 1. Breakdown of passenger traffic at the Roman airport system by geographical area
20 8%
® 5.5% 5.7% %
16 A\

/\ / \ 4%

14 \ / \

. 1.1% 2%

\ / \ 0.2%

i \ / \ / O%
8 2%
o -2.0% 2.1%

4%
4
2 n -6%
0 [ 05 | EX %
Italy Western Europe Eastern Europe North America Central/South Middle East Far East Africa
America
e Total

= % change vs prev. year

A breakdown by segment reveals that the EU segment is the main driver of growth at the Roman airport system
(up 2.8%, representing 46.1% of total traffic), compared with a fall in the non-EU segment (down 1.3%) and
the above-mentioned decline in domestic traffic (down 7.1%).

However, for comparative purposes, the performances of the EU and non-EU segments were partly influenced
by the reallocation of Switzerland and Croatia from the non-EU to the EU tariff area from 1 July 2013. If
considered as being within the EU tariff area, these countries would have registered increases of 0.4% and
3.3%, respectively.

Graph 2. Breakdown of traffic at the Roman airport system in 2013
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Passenger trends at Fiumicino airport were influenced by the performance of the main carrier (Alitalia, with a
share of around 45%), which saw a 1.1% decrease in passengers transported compared with the previous year,
primarily due to a decline in the Domestic segment (down 5.3%), while the International segment registered an
increase.

International traffic was up 4.2% on 2012 volumes, largely thanks to the positive performances registered in
Europe (up 5.4%), the Middle East (up 11.2%), Central and South America (up 3.5%), Africa (up 3.1%) and
North America (up 2.3%); the only area that registered a decrease was the Far East (down 11.6%).
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Graph 3. Breakdown of Alitalia traffic at Fiumicino Airport in 2013
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Aviation activities

Aviation activities directly connected to the airport sector, including airport fees, centralised infrastructure and
security and services generated revenue of €457.8 million in 2013, up 42.3% on the previous year.

It should be noted that on 9 March 2013 the new fees laid down in the Planning Agreement approved on 21
December 2012 were applied, entailing an average fee increase of around 50%.

Airport fee revenue in 2013 amounts to €338.9 million, representing an 89.0% increase.
P 3 330.3 , Tep g 9

The positive performance registered in 2013 derives from:

. take-off, landing and parking fees, amounting to €97.0 million, representing an increase of 70.4%
arising from two opposing factors: on the one hand a reduction in the number of movements (down
3.7%), and on the other the higher unit fees charged. The increase derives from the rise in fees as of 12
December 2012 (correction of the previous adjustment of the target inflation rate from 1.5% to 2.0%),
and the higher unit fees arising from application of the Planning Agreement on 9 March 2013, which also
incorporated the fees and related costs previously applied for the use of common assets, catering, fuelling,
refuelling facilities at remote stands and safety within take-off and landing fees;

+  passenger embarkation fees, amounting to €238.4 million, are up 100.0% compared with 2012. The
reduction in the number of passengers boarded was offset by the above adjustment of fees in line with
inflation, and above all the increase in fees arising from application of the Planning Agreement, which
incorporated various centralised infrastructure fees and related costs regarding services directly attributable
to passengers within the passenger embarkation fee (including baggage handling systems, passenger check-
in IT systems and public information announcements);

+  cargo fees amounted to €2.8 million, representing a 2.2% decrease, deriving from a reduction in the
amount of cargo transported compared with the previous year (down 0.8%). Having taken into account the
current state of the air freight market, and despite the fact that the new Planning Agreement permits the
application of a higher fee, ADR temporarily decided to continue with the previous level of fees in 2013.

Taking into account the above incorporation of certain centralised infrastructure fees within airport fees,
management of centralised airport infrastructure registered revenue of €15.8 million, down 62.0% on the
previous year.

Security activities generated revenue of €73.1 million in 2013, up 7.0% on the previous year. This result
derives from the increase in unit fees provided for in the Planning Agreement, which more than offset the
reduction in passenger traffic.
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Revenue from other aviation activities, amounting to €30.6 million, is down 6.6% on the previous year,

reflecting:

assistance to passengers with reduced mobility, carried out by ADR via a service contract granted to the
subsidiary, ADR Assistance. Revenue amounts to €16.5 million, up 1.7% on the previous year, due to the
different unit fees applied in 2012 (primarily relating to the increase in the unit fee for Fiumicino from
€0.74 to €0.91 as of 1 May 2012), the effect of which is partly offset by the reduction in the number of
passengers boarded;

passenger check-in counters: revenue, amounting to €11.7 million, is up slightly (up 2.2%) compared with
the previous year, due to the combined effect of the reduction in outbound flights and the new procedures
which, based on the maximum number of passengers to be checked in per flight for each counter,
encourage more intense use of the facilities. An additional factor was the increase in unit fees provided for
by the Planning Agreement as of 9 March 2013;

other aviation revenue, totalling around €2.4 million, consists of revenue from the use of common assets,
luggage porters and left luggage, self-service luggage trolleys, etc. This revenue registered a reduction

of 53.2% compared with 2012, as fees for the use of common assets which, as mentioned above, were

incorporated within take-off and landing fees, were no longer applied after 9 March 2013.

Non-aviation activities

Non-aviation activities include property management and retail activities (sales, sub-concessions and utilities,

car parks, advertising and food services), among others.

Non-aviation revenue is down from €222.0 million in 2012 to €206.6 million in 2013 (a decline of 6.9%).

The most important components include:

retail sub-concessions, which generated revenue of €95.2 million, up 1.8% compared with 2012. Retail

activities benefited from a favourable traffic mix connected to growth in the international segment,

which traditionally has a greater propensity to spend than the domestic segment. Together with the

business initiatives implemented, the performances registered bucked the downturn in traffic, despite the

unfavourable macroeconomic climate. Growth was also helped by an improvement in security procedures
as of May, entailing a reduction in time spent queuing and resulting in an increase in the time available for
shopping;

revenue from property management, amounting to €56.8 million in 2013, is down 9.9% on the previous

year. This revenue breaks down as follows:

- fees and utilities relating to retail sub-concessions, generating revenue of €4%7.8 million, registering
a slight increase (up 0.5%), due to an increase in sub-concession fees to bring them into line with
inflation, and the sub-concession of two new spaces (the Emirates VIP lounge and the Painting
Hangar);

- other fees charged at Fiumicino and Ciampino, generating revenue of €9.0 million, down 41.8% on
the previous year. This reduction is due to the fact that certain items (e.g. fuel surcharges and catering)
are no longer separately charged since application of the new fees under the Planning Agreement, as
related costs are incorporated within the new take-off and landing fees;

car park management, which generated revenue of €27.5 million, down 7.7% on the previous year.

Passenger car parks, with revenue amounting to €22.8 million, registered a 10.2% fall (due to lower

volumes, especially of outbound traffic), while revenue from the car parks used by airport operators

amounted to €4.7 million, representing an increase of 7.1%;

advertising, which is managed by ADR Advertising SpA, generated revenue of €12.4 million, a 22.7% fall

compared with 2012. This reflects the ongoing crisis in the advertising sector and the reduction in space

available for advertising at terminals.
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The ADR Group’s capital expenditure

Following approval of the Planning Agreement, planning and implementation of investment primarily aimed at

modernising Fiumicino airport began in 2013. Capital expenditure totalled €128.3 million during the year.

The principal works regarded:

- Runways and aprons: the upgrade of taxiways and runways at Fiumicino and Ciampino;

+ The upgrade of Runway 2;

- Maintenance and optimisation of terminals aimed at improving the image and service provided to
passengers (e.g. the upgrade of the security checking and passport control area at Terminal 3; the
restructuring of restrooms; the restructuring of loading bridges at Pier B);

. Departure area E/F (provisional works on the Avant-corps for T3 and the laying of foundations, technical

planning assessments regarding replacement of the BHS/HBS systems, and other upgrade work on the Pier

have been completed) .

2013 2012
CAPEX REFURB. 9 CAPEX ) REFURB. 9

Runways and aprons 2.7 21.7 24.4 0.0 5.4 5.4
Upgrade Runway 2 0.0 17.5 17.5 0.0 0.0 0.0
Departure area E/F (Pier C and 3rd BHS) 10.6 0.0 10.6 8.0 0.0 8.0
Work on terminals and piers 3.7 21.6 25.3 0.6 8.0 8.6
Work on technical systems and networks 3.1 14.6 17.7 0.1 11.6 11.7
Baggage handling sub-system and 1.5 6.2 7.7 0.8 3.7 4.5
airport equipment

Other 13.9 11.2 25.1 5.5 8.1 13.6
Total 35.5 92.8 128.3 15.0 36.8 51.8

(*) Including works funded by the Civil Aviation Authority.
(**) These amounts are released from the provisions for airport refurbishment.

The volume of investment in 2013 reflects the reformulation of the Investment Plan 2012-2016 approved by
the Civil Aviation Authority.

In particular, the Cabinet Office Decree of 21 December 2012 required changes to the investment plan in order to
bring forward works totalling €325 million to the period 2012-2016, which were initially scheduled for the five-year
period 2017-2021. Consequently, in February 2013 ADR submitted the new expedited plan to the Civil Aviation
Authority, together with evidence of the assumptions that condition the feasibility of carrying out the investment
within the stipulated period, including, first and foremost, the need to obtain the related Environmental Impact

Assessment Decree and planning permission for the “Plan for completion of Fiumicino South”.

Subsequently, in November 2013, partly as a result of specific requests from airport users during the
consultations as part of the fee review for 2014, and taking into account observed and forecast traffic trends,
ADR sent a proposal to the Civil Aviation Authority, ENAC, regarding reformulation of the investment
timetable in the fee sub-period 2012-2016, with particular reference to the remaining period 2014-2016.
This proposal provides for a reduction of approximately €370 million in investment in the entire sub-period
2012-2016, compared with the timetable sent to the Civil Aviation Authority in February 2013 (approximately
€930 million, compared with approximately €1,300 million), above all involving the postponement of work on
expanding capacity to the subsequent five-year period, while giving priority to work with an impact on quality
and safeguarding implementation of the projects of strategic interest for the airport system. The reformulation
request arose from the following circumstances:
- lack of/delayed implementation of administrative measures required to comply with the timetables
submitted in February 2013, which has impacted on the time needed to complete the planned works (with
particular reference to the delayed publication of the Environmental Impact Assessment Decree, resulting

in postponement of the Services Conference);
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- the decline in traffic and uncertainty connected with the future of Alitalia;

. requests from airport users during the consultations as part of the review of planned works;

+  the advisability of reducing the impact on fees of the expenses arising from the expedited investment plan
contained in the Cabinet Office Decree of December 2012;

- pending appeals lodged by airlines and their associations against the Planning Agreement;

- requests from the government and the Antitrust Authority to limit new fee increases.

ENAC replied to the above letter from ADR on 29 November 2013, notifying the go-ahead from the Ministry
of Infrastructure and Transport, on I0 January 2014, for ADR’s proposed reformulation of the investment
timetable for the period 2012-2016. The airport users were informed of this at a meeting on 14 January 2014,
held to discuss the fees to be applied from 1 March 2014.

Annual Report 2013 87



| . |
I 2. Report on operations [N

Technology Sy

The Group operates in Italy and overseas in the area of automated tolling systems and related services, primarily

via Telepass, Autostrade Tech and ETC (in the USA), while Ecomouv in France has completed construction

of a government-commissioned tolling system and is awaiting formal delivery of the system to the French

government.

Technology business revenue is down €6%7.8 million compared with 2012, primarily due to completion of the

construction phase of the Eco-Taxe project and, to a lesser extent, a contraction in Autostrade Tech’s turnover

in the [talian market (above all in the processing of traffic information and tolling systems), only partially offset

by increased revenue at Telepass due to its core business (fees for equipment and Premium services) and non-

recurring income.

The downturn in revenue is also reflected in the cost of materials and external services, which registered a

€4.2.6 million reduction compared with 2012, in connection with completion of the above Eco-Taxe project,

the contraction in Autostrade Tech’s turnover and the overall decrease in Telepass’s operating costs.

Staff costs, before deducting capitalised expenses, decreased by €1.1 million (1.7%) compared with 2012, due

to:

a) an increase of 77 in the average workforce (up 8.6%), primarily due to the recruitment of staff for
Ecomouv’s contact centre;

b) a decrease in the average unit cost (down 7.4%), due to the recruitment of staff for Ecomouv’s contact
centre, with average unit costs significantly lower than the aggregate average;

¢) adecrease in other staff costs (down 2.9%), primarily due to reduced use of agency staff.

EBITDA for the Technology segment amounts to €73.9 million, registering a reduction of €22.2 million
compared with 2012 (€96.1 million).

Telepass

The company is responsible for operating motorway tolling systems providing an alternative to cash payments
(the Viacard direct debit card and Telepass devices), as well as payment systems for parking services (especially at
airports) and restricted traffic zones. In addition, from 2013, with the new Telepass SAT product, the company
offers an electronic tolling service for heavy vehicles, including on the motorway networks of France, Spain and
Belgium.

(1) The following analysis is based on aggregate amounts that do not take into account the eliminations of any transactions between companies belonging to the
same segment.
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As at 31 December 2013 more than 8.2 million Telepass devices were in circulation (almost 200,000 units
more than at 31 December 2012), with the number of subscribers of the Premium option totalling 1.7 million
(up almost 90,000 compared with 31 December 2012).

Revenue of €141.1 million in 2013 was primarily generated by Telepass fees of €92.8 million (up €2.0 million
on 2012), Viacard subscription fees of €21.3 million (down €0.8 million on the previous year)and payments
for Premium services of €13.3 million (up €I1.3 million on 2012).

The company’s EBITDA for 2013 amounts to €85.6 million, compared with the €79.9 million registered in
2012.

Autostrade Tech

Autostrade Tech is a provider of Information Technology Systems, operating in Italy and overseas. It supplies
systems used for tolling, traffic management and information, urban access controls, car parks and speed
checks.

Revenue of €62.4 million in 2013 is down €14..8 million (-19.12%) compared to the figure for 2012, above

all due to the fact that work on the contract for the Eco-Taxe Poids Lourds project awarded to the subsidiary,
Ecomouv, is nearing completion. EBITDA in 2013 is €6.8 million, with a decrease with respect to the previous

year of €17.1 million.

Ecomouv

On 20 October 2011 Autostrade per I'Italia, via the project company, Ecomouv Sas (in which Autostrade per
I'Ttalia holds a 70% interest) signed a partnership agreement with the French Ministry of Ecology, Sustainable
Development, Transport and Public Housing (MEEDE) for the implementation and operation of a satellite-
based tolling system for heavy vehicles weighing over 3.5 tonnes on approximately 15,000 km of the country’s
road network (the so-called Eco-Taxe Poids Lourds project).

The contract envisages total investment of approximately €650 million and total revenue of €2.8 billion over
the 13 years and 3 months of the concession term. There will be an initial 21-month design and construction
phase, followed by operation and maintenance of the tax collection system for IT and a half years.

On 19 July 2013 the Minister of Transport authorised the start-up of registration of taxpayers who intend to
pay the tax by buying a subscription from the companies specifically appointed by decree to act on behalf of the
government (registration for the other taxpayers, who will pay the tax directly using Ecomouv’s services, began
on 14 October 2013).

Nationwide, voluntary trials of the system began on 29 July 2013, involving over 10,000 vehicles and more
than 15 million verified transactions. This confirmed the correct operation of the unit’s core functions
(collection and payment of the tax), as publicly acknowledged by the French government.

On 5 September 2013 the Ministry of Transport, however, announced that there would be a delay in
application of the tax, previously scheduled for 1 October 2013, in order to correct a number of peripheral
aspects of the device (but, in substance, due to the low number of contracts registered in the period from 19
July to 3T August, numbering around 20,000 and thus insufficient to permit the start-up of operation).
Application was scheduled for 1 January 2014.

Final testing of adjustments made by Ecomouv in the meantime began on 16 September and the legislative
framework governing application of the tax was completed (with publication of the decree bringing the tax into
effect on 5 October 2013).

From 15 October 2013 the State authorised the initiation of registration for users who had not subscribed and
the opening of the distribution network.

As at 31 December 2013, as part of the design and construction phase, Ecomouv has completed investment
totalling €627.8 million, relating primarily to development of the tolling system, the central system and the

control system.

Annual Report 2013 89



| . |
I 2. Report on operations [N

Testing of the system by the French government (Vérification d’Attitude au Bon Fonctionnement - VABF) was
completed on 8 November 2013 and on 22 November 2013 the government acknowledged compliance of the
system with the applicable technical, legal and regulatory requirements, save for endorsement of the chains of
collection and control. These endorsements, which according to Ecomouv are not necessary for the purpose of
the VABF, were announced in December 2013.

On 29 October 2013, following a violent protest movement in Brittany, the French Prime Minister announced
the suspension of introduction of the ecotax in order to reduce the burden on road users, as demanded by road
hauliers’ associations, farmers and politicians in the Brittany region. Postponement of introduction of the tax
had a serious impact on fulfilment of the contract. Two parliamentary committees were set up to look into the
ecotax in December 2013, one of which, the Mission d'Information at the National Assembly, with the main
purpose of establishing if the conditions are right for a renewed attempt to introduce the tax.

On 22 October 2013, just one week before the announcement of the suspension, the Ministry of Transport
communicated to the various actors in the system Eco-Taxe (Ecomouyv, Electronic toll Companies, professional
organizations, transporters) that the acceptance of the device (“BIC Disposition”) would take place by the end
of November 2013 and the tax would come into force on I January 2014.

For events after 31 December 2013, included valutation following the letter received by Ministry of Transport
on 20 March 2014, see the relevant section below.

Electronic Transaction Consultants

Electronic Transaction Consultants (ETC) is a US provider of systems integration, hardware and software
maintenance, customer services and consultancy in the field of free-flow electronic tolling systems. Via its
subsidiary, Autostrade dell’Atlantico, Autostrade per I'Italia holds a 61.41% interest in the company.

ETC generated revenue of €44.7 million in 2013, marking a decrease of 3.0% (up 0.2% on a constant
currency basis) compared with 2012 (€4.6.1 million). Negative EBITDA of €4.4 million has deteriorated from
the negative result of 2012 (€3.4 million).
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Design and construction

The Group designs, builds and maintains motorway infrastructure (primarily in Italy on the network operated

by the Group’s subsidiaries) through Pavimental and Spea.

Pavimental

The company operates as a motorway maintenance provider and carries out major infrastructure works for the
Group and external customers.

Compared with 2012, revenue of €356.7 million is down €154.7 million (30.3%). This is due to the lower
volume of work carried out as a result of the completion of a number of construction projects commissioned
by Autostrade per I'Italia (on the A14 and A9) and by other customers (Autostrada Tirrenica and Autostrade
Centropadane).

EBITDA of €17.3 million is up €14..6 million on the figure registered in the previous year. It should be

noted that the 2012 financial statements recognised losses, totalling €44.0 million, on contracts relating to
infrastructure construction work commissioned by Autostrade per I'Italia and other customers (Autostrada
Tirrenica), following the application of discounts by the Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport to
infrastructure contracts with Autostrade per I'Italia and SAT carried out in the last three years. In 2013,
however, despite the above-mentioned fall in the volume of work, the company partly offset this reduction by
cutting the cost of materials and external services and staff costs (down €8.8 million, representing a 17.48%
decrease). This reflects the decrease in the number of staff employed on infrastructure projects and the impact

of a series of cost-cutting measures regarding maintenance and the head office.

Spea Ingegneria Europea

The company supplies engineering services involved in the design, project management and controls connected
to the upgrade and extraordinary maintenance of the Group’s network.

Revenue of €89.7 million in 2013 is down €27.0 million (23.12%) compared with the previous year, primarily
due to the lower volume of infrastructure design work carried out, above all in relation to the final designs

for the Genoa Interchange relating to works envisaged in Autostrade per I'Italia’s 2007 investment plan. The
reduction in revenue is also due to the lower volume of project management work, especially regarding the A14
Rimini-Pedaso, the A9 Lainate-Como and the Base Tunnel.

92% of the company’s revenue during the year was earned on services provided to the Group.

EBITDA is €25.1 million for 2013, down €15.7 million on the previous year, primarily reflecting the above
reduction in revenue, offset by reduced use of external consultants (down €5.5 million) and a decrease in staff

costs (down €4.5 million).
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Innovation, research and development

The Group’s innovation, research and development activities aim to offer innovative, technologically advanced

solutions designed to:

boost motorway service quality, in terms of safety and traffic flow, by improving the network through its
upgrade, modernisation, maintenance and monitoring;

improve management of the network and the efficiency of transport through the development of dedicated
information systems;

minimise the impact of motorway operations right from the start of the design process, by managing the

infrastructure in a sustainable manner in accordance with European and national objectives.

The most important projects in progress in 2013 regard:

systems to identify the class of vehicle in order to apply the appropriate toll;

an information system for monitoring traffic and accidents to improve traffic management and the
planning of road works;

technological improvements to the Safety Tutor system for speed checks;

a new satellite-based tolling system;

a monitoring and early warning system to reduce hydro geological risk in order to protect people,
including the circulation of information;

technical solutions regarding the use of cultural heritage sites by tourists in connection with recent
developments relating to Smart Cities systems and applications, and the provisions of the ITS (Intelligent
Transportation System) directive;

a new platform for the multichannel diffusion of geo-referenced information linked to info-mobility and
infotainment;

a new innovative platform for monitoring traffic flows for road network and snow emergency management;
a new info-telematic platform for sustainable management of flows of people, vehicles and goods in urban
and suburban areas;

the use of new robotic technologies (drones) with a low impact on traffic flow to carry out close-up
inspections;

new-generation wireless devices for emergency communication in tunnels, in compliance with Legislative
Decree 264/2006;

a system for managing technical and energy efficiency, maintenance and safety in road tunnels, capable of

responding to traffic conditions and the behaviour of road users.

These activities also include those carried out in relation to the conduct of European or national research,

development and innovation programmes and the establishment of transport-related regulations, such as

safety, the implementation of intelligent transport and automated tolling systems, by participating in bodies

and associations at regional, national and European level.

Group companies’ total expenditure on innovation, research and development in 2013 amounts to €8.6

million.
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This sum represents the total amount spent by the Group on research and development, including operating
costs and investment in staff and the related expenses.

On the airport research and development front, ADR - as part of a consortium set up with other European
companies, including SEA from Milan - is participating in the CASCADE project, which is funded by the
European Union, after being put out to tender. The project, which is coordinated by the German research
centre, Fraunhofer, aims to save energy at airports by using innovative fault detection and diagnosis (FDD)
technology, applied in particular to heating and air conditioning systems. The initiative is producing

interesting results in terms of preventing malfunctions and improving plant efficiency to save energy.
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Workforce

As at 31 December 2013 the Group employs 13,388 staff on permanent contracts and 832 temporary staff,

resulting in a total workforce of 14,220, including 11,307 in Italy and 2,913 at overseas companies. After

stripping out the staff from the former Gemina group companies from the scope of consolidation, the total
workforce is down 97 (0.8%) compared with the 11,992 of 31 December 2012.

The change in permanent staff (up 1,977) primarily reflects events at the following Group companies:

first-time consolidation of the former Gemina group companies (up I,905);

recruitment of contact centre staff at Ecomouv (up 161);

conversion of some temporary contracts into permanent ones and the progressive planned upgrade of
technical staff at Giove Clear, the company responsible for cleaning a number of service areas on the
Italian motorway network (up 52);

Brazilian companies (up 25), primarily due to recruitment of staff for the Joint Services Centre at Atlantia
Bertin Concessoes, and coverage of turnover among the toll collection staff at Colinas and Nascentes;
Autostrade Tech (up 11), due to conversion of some temporary contracts into permanent ones, and the
transfer of staff from Autostrade per I'Italia;

Chilean companies (down 92), due to a staff reduction following the centralisation of activities;
Telepass (down 4.2), due to the transfer of contact centre staff to Autostrade per 1'Italia;

Spea (down 15) and Pavimental (down 14), due to an increase in organisational efficiency following a
reduction in business volumes;

Italian motorway operators (down 21), following a reduction in the number toll collectors, above all at
Autostrade per I'ltalia.

The change in temporary staff (up 25T) primarily reflects events at the following Group companies:

first-time consolidation of the former Gemina group companies (up 420);
Spea (down %72) and Pavimental (down 12), due to the expiry of contracts;

Giove Clear (down 30), due to the conversion of temporary contracts into permanent ones;

Autostrade Tech (down 7), due to the conversion of temporary contracts into permanent ones;

Italian operators (down 49), primarily due to a reduction in the number in toll collectors at Autostrade
per I'ltalia.

The average workforce (including agency staff) rose from 11,260 in 2012 to II,584 in 2013, representing a

total increase of 324 on average (up 2.9%).

The increase (up 324 on average) primarily reflects:

first-time consolidation of the former Gemina group companies (up 178 on average);

the different impact on the scope of consolidation of the new operators in Chile (up 116 on average) and
Brazil (up 383 on average);

deconsolidation of Port Mobility (down 30 on average);

recruitment of contact centre staff at Ecomouv (up 104 on average);
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expansion of Giove Clear’s operations (up 777 on average);

a reduction in temporary contracts, a freeze on recruitment and use of ordinary and extraordinary income

support and solidarity contracts by Pavimental (down 158 on average);

a fall in temporary contracts and reduced use of temporary staff at Spea (down 98 on average);

reduced use of temporary staff at Electronic Transaction Consultants (down 80 on average);

staff reductions and non-renewal of temporary staff contracts at EsseDiEsse (down 28 on average);

deconsolidation of Biuro Centrum by the Stalexport Autostrady group (down I3 on average);

staff reductions among Italian motorway operators (down 125 on average), following reductions in the

numbers of toll collectors at Autostrade per I'Italia, Tangenziale di Napoli and SAM.

Permanent staff

POSITION 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
ABSOLUTE %
Senior managers 249 207 42 20.3%
Middle managers 986 799 187 23.4%
Administrative staff 6,245 4,742 1,503 31.7%
Manual workers 2,523 2,240 283 12.6%
Toll collectors 3,385 3,423 (38) -1.1%
Total 13,388 11,411 1,977 17.3%
Temporary staff
POSITION 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
ABSOLUTE %
Senior managers 1 - 1 n.s.
Middle managers 2 2 - 0.0%
Administrative staff 305 163 142 87.1%
Manual workers 395 251 144 57.4%
Toll collectors 129 165 (36) -21.8%
Total 832 581 251 43.2%

Average workforce ®

POSITION 2013 2012 INCREASE/DECREASE

ABSOLUTE %
Senior managers 204 206 (2) -1.0%
Middle managers 812 775 37 4.8%
Administrative staff 4,928 4,761 167 3.5%
Manual workers 2,143 2,280 (137) -6.0%
Toll collectors 3,497 3,238 259 8.0%
Total 11,584 11,260 324 2.9%

(*) Includes agency staff.
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Distribution of the Group’s workforce

' Distribution of permanent staff Distribution of permanent staff
by category/position by age range
B Ssenior managers 1.9% B 30 and under 9.6%
Middle managers 7.4% B 31t045 32.5%
B Administrative staff 46.6% 46 to 55 39.3%
B Toll collectors  25.3% B 561060 15.1%
B Manual workers 18.8% B over60 3.5%

Distribution of permanent staff
by length of service

Distribution of permanent staff
by educational qualification

[ | University graduates ~ 19.2% B under1 year 10.1%
B High school graduates 45.7% B 2t05years 18.6%
Other 35.1% 6 to 10 years 13.8%

11 to 20 years 13.1%

B 211030 years 28.3%

B over30 years 12.3%

As at 31 December 2013 the ADR Group’s workforce numbered 2,321 @, up 4.2% on 31 December 2012. This
increase derives from a strong commitment to achieve tougher quality objectives, especially regarding the time
taken to complete security checks, as well as an upgrade of technical facilities to support implementation of the
infrastructure development plan provided for by the Planning Agreement signed at the end of 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, 1,901 staff were on permanent contracts, marking an increase of 31 compared

with 31 December 2012 (up 1.7%). This increase is linked to the above upgrade of technical facilities. As at
31 December 2013, 420 staff were on temporary contracts, marking an increase of 63 with respect to the
same period in 2012 (up 17.6%). The rise is connected with achievement of service quality improvement
objectives.

The Group’s average workforce numbered 2,151.8 in 2013, down 166.3 on 2012. This decrease derives from
outsourcing in the previous year (ADR Retail and vehicle maintenance, with a total of 210.8 staff), partly offset
by the upgrade of technical facilities and the increase in seasonal staff employed in operational departments,

especially at ADR Security (up 71.9).

Group workforce by position (end of year)

POSITION 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
ABSOLUTE %
Senior managers 50 45 5 11.1%
Middle managers 185 180 5 2.8%
Administrative staff 1,625 1,551 74 4.8%
Manual workers 461 451 10 2.2%
Total 2,321 2,227 94 4.2%

(1) The difference between ADR Group staff (2,321) and those from the former Gemina group (2,325) derives from the 4 staff employed by Fiumicino Energia, a
direct subsidiary of Atlantia and not ADR.
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Group workforce by type of contract (end of year)

POSITION 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
ABSOLUTE %
Permanent 1,901 1,870 31 1.7%
Temporary 420 357 1 0.3%
Total 2,321 2,227 32 1.4%

Group workforce by position (average)

POSITION 2013 2012 INCREASE/DECREASE
ABSOLUTE %
Senior managers 47.5 42.9 5 10.7%
Middle managers 183.9 182.9 1 0.5%
Administrative staff 1,476.4 1,571.2 (95) -6.0%
Manual workers 444.0 521.1 (77) -14.8%
Total 2,151.8 2,318.1 (166) -7.2%

Staff costs (before deducting capitalised expenses) of €675.0 million are down €5.0 million (0.7%) from 2012
(€680.0 million).

After stripping out the contributions from the Chilean and Brazilian companies consolidated in 2012 and the
former Gemina group companies, and adjusting for the deconsolidation of Port Mobility, staff costs are down
€21.1 million (3.1%) on a constant currency basis. This reflects:

a) adecrease of 406 (3.7%) in the average workforce;

b) an increase in the average unit cost (up 1.8%), primarily due to contract renewals at Italian
motorway operators for the periods 2010-2012 and 2013-2015, partly offset by the reduction in
variable staff;

¢) aI.8% reduction in other staff costs, primarily due to reduced use of agency staff by Electronic Transaction
Consultants, Spea and EsseDiEsse (equal to a reduction of 100 on average) and a reduction in the cost of
early retirement incentives;

d) expansion of the activities of the French companies (Ecomouv’s contact centre) and of Giove Clear (up

0.6%).

Capitalised staff costs total €84..5 million for 2013, compared with the €90.9 million of 2012.

The Group’s human resources policies

The Atlantia Group believes that an organisation’s competitive edge depends on the value of the individuals
who operate within it. This is what drives us to attract, welcome and develop capable and competent staff who
are full of enthusiasm and potential.

The way the Group’s various businesses are organised leaves ample room for the expression of talent and

rewards those willing to invest their skills and energy to achieve shared success.

Selection and recruitment
The Group selection process is managed by the parent holding company, with the aim of pooling high-

potential resources for the benefit of all Group companies, thus enabling the standardisation of recruitment

requirements, the management policy relating to the process, and skills assessment procedures. Joining the
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Group as a member of staff means embarking on a career path that encourages learning via a host of individual

and group experiences and training initiatives.

In 2013 the subsidiary, Autostrade per I'Italia, continued the Autostrade per la conoscenza (Autostrade for
Knowledge) project, which is the primary channel for promoting employer branding and recruitment drives to
acquire high-potential junior profiles for Autostrade per I'Italia and its subsidiaries, as well as other Atlantia
Group companies.

This initiative enables companies to get in touch with the most talented people at Italy’s major universities,
which leads to collaboration with undergraduates and postgraduates.

More than 120 scholarships have been awarded since the start of the project.

Intercompany mobility

The Group’s intercompany mobility policies are aimed at enhancing internal human resources and their
expertise. In pursuing this objective, vertical and horizontal professional mobility is the preferred channel for
filling Group company job vacancies, which enables development of know-how and the individual capacities of
human resources and their real talents.

The diverse nature of the Group’s business, together with the presence of Italian and overseas companies,
encourages inter—departmental and geographic mobility, making the experience a unique opportunity for

professional enrichment, acquisition of know-how and “personal” growth.

In 2013, 257 staff from Autostrade per I'Italia and its Italian subsidiaries benefitted from mobility, of which
173 horizontally and 84 vertically. Regarding Aeroporti di Roma and its subsidiaries, 168 staff benefitted from
mobility, of which 107 horizontally and 61 vertically.

Organisation

During 2013, partly as a result of the merger of Atlantia and Gemina, a new organisational structure was

implemented. As at 3T December 2013 the Atlantia Group has the following structure:

- Atlantia SpA, which is the parent holding company responsible for managing and coordinating the
Group’s strategic activities (investment, finance and investor relations, reporting and control, human
resources, external relations, legal and corporate affairs, auditing);

- Autostrade per I'Italia SpA and its subsidiaries, which operate motorway networks in Italy and overseas;

. Aeroporti di Roma SpA and its subsidiaries, which manage airport infrastructure at Rome’s Fiumicino and
Ciampino airports.

Both the motorway and airport businesses benefit from integrated support from other important Group

companies that deal with design, construction and technological innovation.

Key projects and initiatives in 2013 include:
- Regarding Autostrade per I'Italia and its subsidiaries:

- the “insourcing” project, aimed at internalising the main core activities, through the identification
and retraining of professionals. The project regarded these sectors: technical (project management,
design, security, surveillance), administrative (controls regarding Law 262/2005), customer care
(contact centres), IT systems and general services, and involved a total of approximately 160 staff
located at the Rome, Florence and Section Department offices;

- during 2013, 122 organisational procedures were issued and/or updated (regarding Ttalian
subsidiaries) to deal with legislative and organisational changes that occurred. The main updates

related to occupational health and safety, environmental protection and the Consolidated Finance Act.
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. Regarchng ADR and its subsidiaries:
the governance system was reviewed and redefined in order to orient the organisational structure
towards a model that concentrates management and governance of airport activities within the main
company, Aeroporti di Roma SpA;

- identification of four areas of business: aviation, non-aviation retail, property management and
infrastructure development. The service functions that directly support operations, in which the
activities of subsidiaries also converge, were also identified;

- review of the most important organisational procedures, including in the light of Legislative Decree
231/2001: planning cycle, accounts payable, authorities and powers of attorney, operational guidelines
for the award of retail sub-concessions;

- establishment of two new committees by the Board of Directors: the “Contract Governance
Committee” and the “Committee to Manage the Process of Development and Sale of the Direct Retail
and Mobility Businesses”.

Remuneration system

The Group’s remuneration system values expertise and experience and remunerates staff in terms of their
organisational roles and related responsibilities, and also rewards excellence, thus guaranteeing sustainable
value creation over time through recognition of individual contributions. Remuneration breaks down into

these components: fixed, short- and medium/long-term variable, and additional benefits.

The main incentive schemes used to support the Company’s remuneration policies are:

a) Short-term variable remuneration (MBO), which pursues business objectives by linking corporate
and individual performance. In 2013 participation in the MBO system at Autostrade per I'Italia and its
subsidiaries included 100% of senior managers, 75% of middle managers and 24.% of professionals. At
Aeroporti di Roma and its subsidiaries all senior and middle managers participated.

b) Medium/long-term variable remuneration (Equity Plans) is an incentive scheme for Atlantia Group
directors and employees operating in positions with major responsibility in the Company or in the
companies of the Group. As at 31 December 2013, Equity Plans, and their beneficiaries, included:

1) 2011 Share Option Plan
. Ist cycle: 8 senior managers and directors from Atlantia, Autostrade per I'Italia and its subsidiaries
. 2nd cycle: 9 senior managers and directors from Atlantia, Autostrade per I'Italia and its
subsidiaries
+ 3rd cycle: 72 senior managers and directors from the Atlantia Group
2) 2011 Share Grant Plan
Ist cycle: 37 senior managers and directors from Atlantia, Autostrade per I'Italia and its
subsidiaries
+ 2nd cycle: 39 senior managers and directors from Atlantia, Autostrade per I'Italia and its
subsidiaries
+ 3rd cycle: 72 senior managers and directors from the Atlantia Group
3) MBO Share Grant Plan
. Ist cycle: 9 senior managers and directors from Atlantia, Autostrade per I'Italia and its subsidiaries
. 2nd cycle: IO senior managers and directors from Atlantia, Autostrade per I'Italia and its
subsidiaries
. 3rd cycle: 10 senior managers and directors from Atlantia, Autostrade per I'Italia and its
subsidiaries (to be awarded on release of the 2013 MBO